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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Amana Cooperative Insurance Company - a Saudi Joint Stock
Company (“the Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the related statement of income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policies information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are endorsed by Saudi Organization
for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”) (referred to as “TFRS as endorsed in Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) that is endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia that is relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with that Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 of the audited financial statements which indicates that for the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company has posted a net comprehensive income of SAR 31.48 million (2022:
Comprehensive loss of SAR 45.63 million), the Company’s accumulated losses as at 31 December 2023, are
43.39 % (31 December 2022: 49.92 %) of the Company’s share capital. These events and conditions indicate
a material uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the accompanying
financial statements are prepared using the going-concern assumption based on management’s assessment on
the company’s abilities to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
section, we have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our

report:

Key andit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

insurance contract liabilities:

Valuation of estimates of present value of cashflows and risk adjustment for non-finaneial risk -

As at 31 December 2023, estimate of present value of
cash flows and risk adjustment for non-financial risk
for insurance contracts issued amounted to SAR 52.9
million and SAR 2.3 million (2022: SAR 71.9
million and SAR 3.2 million) respectively, and
estimate of present value of cash flows and risk
adjustment for non-financial risk for reinsurance
contract held amounts to SAR 3.1 million and SAR 0
million (2022: SAR 4.6 million and SAR 0 million)
respectively, as reported in Note 5.1 and Note 5.2
respectively to the financial statements.

The estimation of the liability for incurred claims
involves a significant degree of judgement. This
entails estimating the present value of future cash
flows and the risk adjustment for non-financial risk.
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to
the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
and reflects the compensation that the Company
requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount
and timing of the cash flows from non-financial risk
as the Company fulfils insurance contracts. The
present value of future cash flows are based on the
best- estimate of the ultimate cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether
reported or not, together with the related claims
handling costs.

Accordingly, this complexity arises from calculating
the actuarial best estimate and the margin using
historical data which is sensitive to external inputs,
such as claims cost inflation and medical trends, as
well as the actuarial methodology that is applied and
the assumptions on current and future events.

We performed the following procedures:

» Understood, evaluated and tested key controls
around the claims handling and provision setting
Processes.

« Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management's expertbased
on their professional qualifications and experience
and assessed their independence.

» Performed substantive tests, on sample basis, on
the amounts recorded for claims notified and paid,
including comparing the outstanding claims
amount to appropriate source documentation to
evaluate the valuation of outstanding claim
reserves.

» Assessed the integrity of data used as inputs into
the actuarial valuations, and tested on sample
basis, the accuracy of underlying claims data
utilized by the management's expert in estimating
the present value of the future cashflows and the
risk adjustment for non-financial risk by
comparing it to the accounting and other records.

» Involved our infernal actuarial specialists to
assess the Company’s methods and assumptions
and evaluate the Company's actuarial practices
and provisions established including the actuarial
report issued by management's expert, by
performing the following:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

We have considered this as key audit matter due to
the inherent estimation uncertainty and subjectivity
involved in the assessment of valuation of the
liability for incurred claims arising from insurance
contracts, and the material nature of the amounts
involved.

Refer to notes 3 for the accounting policy and
significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions adopted by the Company, involved in
the initial recognition and subsequent measurement
of insurance contract assets/ liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets/ liabilities. Also, refer
fo note 5.1 & 5.2 for the movement in insurance and
reinsurance contract liabilities respectively.

i. Evaluated whether the Company's actuarial
methodologies were consistent with generally
accepted actuarial practices and with prior years. We
sought sufficient justification for any significant
differences;

ii. Assessed key actuarial assumptions including
claims ratios and expected frequency and severity of
claims. We tested these assumptions by comparing
them with our expectations based on the Company's
historical experience, current trends and our own
industry knowledge; and

iii. Assessed the appropriateness of the calculation
methods and approach along with the assumptions
used and sensitivity analysis performed.

+ Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of the
related disclosures in the financial statements.

Adoption of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9

During 2023, the Company has adopted IFRS 17
“Insurance Contracts”, as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia (IFRS 17), which replaces IFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”, as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia (IFRS 4) and is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023, with
early adoption permitted. IFRS 17 establishes
principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts,
reinsurance contracts and investment contracts with
discretionary participation features (“DPF”). The
Company has applied the full retrospective
approach to each group of insurance contracts.

The adoption of IFRS 17 resulted in a transition
adjustment to the Company's equity as at 01 January
2022 amounting to SAR 5.35 million. IFRS 17
introduced new nomenclature for significant
insurance related balances as well as new
measurement principles for insurance related
liabilities and insurance revenue recognition.

We performed the following procedures:

e Obtained an understanding of the Company's
implementation process for determining the impact of
adoption of the standards, including understanding of
the changes to the Company's accounting policies,
systems, processes and controls.

+ Evaluated and assessed management’s process to
identify insurance contracts, to determine the
appropriate grouping for such contracts and to
determine whether the use of the premium allocation
approach (PAA) under IFRS 17 was appropriate.

+ Evaluated whether management’s allocation of
expenses under IFRS 17 was appropriate and tested,
on a sample basis, such expenses.

« Evaluated the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
under IFRS 17 and tested, on a sample basis, the
underlying data supporting the adjustment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) {continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

o
Further, during the year the Company also adopted | Evaluated and assessed management’s
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, as endorsed in | conclusions regarding the Company’s business
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (IFRS 9) which model for different portfolios of investments and
replaces IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition | the  appropriateness of  the Company’s
and Measurement”, as endorsed in the Kingdom of determination of ECL under IFRS 9.

Saudi Arabia (IAS 39). For the transition to IFRS 9,
the Company applied a retrospective approach to be | » Assessed the adequacy of the transition
in line with the transition option adopted under IFRS | adjustments impact for both IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 on
17 while applying the relevant practical expedients the opening retained earnings as at 01 January 2022.
under IFRS 9.
» Assessed the appropriateness of the transition and
The adoption of IFRS 9 resulted in a transition accounting policies disclosures in relation to IFRS
adjustment to the Company's equity as at 01 January | 17 and IFRS 9 made in the financial statements.
2022 amounting to SAR 34.15 million. IFRS 9 also
required the management to assess its business model | + Assessed the Company’s methods, assumptions
with respect to different portfolios of investments and accounting policies adopted under IFRS

that drive the measurement and disclosures of | 17 and IFRS 9, with the assistance of our actuarial
the Company’s investments. It also introduced the | and accounting specialists and experts.

concept of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) which is a
forward-looking estimate of credit losses for the
Company’s financial assets.

We considered this as key audit matter due to first
year adoption, which resulted in fundamental changes
to classification and measurement of the main
transactions and balances of the Company along with
significant changes to presentation and disclosures
that were required in the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Refer to notes 3 for the accounting policy and
significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions adopted by the Company. The impact of
tramsition is explained in note 4 to the Sfinancial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Other information included in the Company’s 2023 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Company’s 2023 annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The
Company’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Company’s annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the mattet to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the applicable requirements of the Regulations for
Companies, and the Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as the management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance i.e., the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or business
activity within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the Company audit. We solely remain responsible for our audit

opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITQRS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of The Amana Cooperative Insurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (continued)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

El Sayed El Ayouty & Co. AlKharashi and Co.

Certified Public Accountants Certified Accountants and Auditors
P. ©. Box 780 P.O Box 8306

Jeddah 21421 Riyadh 11482

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Abdullah Ahmed Balamesh Abdallah § Al Msned

Certified Public Accountant Certified Public Accountant

License No. 345 License No. 456
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDX JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The accompanying t_lotes' 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2023
31 December 31 December 2022 1 Jannary 2022
ASSETS Notes 2023 (Restated*) {Restated*)
SAR' 000

Cash and cash equivalents 9 173,259 153,756 47,040
Short tern deposits 10 76,216 = 10,000
Insurance contract assets 5 30,420 18,533 17,707
Reinsurance contract aszets 5 3,526 5,557 20,595
Investments designated as FVOCI 12a 44,907 144,023 50,291
Investments held at amortised cost 12k 17,555 12,525 44,198
Prepayments and other receivables 14 31,288 31,713 11,582
Property and equipment 15 5,568 6,391 6,085
ntangible assets 15 741 667 575
Stamyiory deposit 22 64,500 64,500 19,500
Accrued income on stautery deposit 2,931 3,787 2,989
TOTAL ASSETS 450,911 441,452 230,562

=— T
LIABILITIES
Insurance coniract linbilitiss ‘5 122,658 134,353 178,158
Reinsurance contract liabilities 5 4,981 8,132 5,658
Accrued expenses and other Habilities 13 20,675 31,942 32,125
Employees' end-of-service benefits (EOSB) 21 5,181 5,022 5,342
Provigion for zakat and incorne tax 20 11,789 7,008 3,559
Accrued income payable to Insurance Authority 2,931 3,787 2.989
TOTAL LIABILITIES q 168,215 190,245 227,831
EQUITY
Share capital 23 430,600 430,000 130,000
Accumulated losses (186,568} (214,663) {163,521)
Fair value reserve for FVOCT investments 7 41,697 38,820 37,703
Total Shareholders' Equity 285,129 254,157 4,182
Re-measurement of ECSE related to insurance operations 20 (2433) (2,950) (1.451)
TOTAL EQUITY 282,696 251,207 2,731
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 450911 441452 230,562
Compaitments and Contingencies 16
*Comparative information has been restated (refer note 4).

v, i LA
anceMinager Board Member M:na*ing Director



AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2023 2022
(Restated?®)
Notes SAR' 000

REVENUES

Insurance Revenue 3 184,638 237,700
Insurance Service expenses 6 {168,767) (267,935)
Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts held 23,871 (30,235)
Allocation of reinsnrance premiums 6 6:,177) (27.590)
Amonnts (recoverable)/Payable from reinsurers for incurred claims [ (149 12,298
Net expense from reinsurance contracts held (6,326) {15,292)
Insurance service resnit 17,545 {45,527}
Net investment income 7334 1,823
Net credit impairment loss on financial assets {88) (11)
Net invesiment income 7,246 1,812
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued 5.1 (1,681) 1,961
Net insurance fingnce income / {expenses) (1,681) 1,961
Net insorance and investment resunit 23,110 (41,754)
Other operating income 22,047 17,099
Other operating expenses 8.1 {E4,438) (20,078)
Total Ircome / (Ioss) for the year attributable to shareholders before zakat 30,719 {44,733)
Provision for Zekat 20 (5,280) (3,450)
Net Income / (loss) for the year, after zakat, attributable to the shareholders 25439 (48, 183)
Earnings/ {loss) per share (expressed in SAR per share) note 29

Beasic and diluted earnings/ (loss} per sharc (expressed in SAR per share) 0.59 (1,70}
‘Weighted average number of ordinary outstanding shares (in ‘thousands) 43,000 28,330

*Comparative information has been restated (refer note 4).

=

WManager Board Member Msnnqing Director

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements,



AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDY JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Notes
Total income/ (loss) for the year attributable to the shareholders
Other comprehensive income / {loss):
Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of income in "
a

Net changes in fair value of investments measured at FVOCI —
equity instruments

Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit obligations

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to the shareholders

*Comparative information has been restated (refer note 4).

O

nn? Manager Board Member

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

10

2022
2023 (Restated*)

25439 (48,183)
5,533 4,045

517 (1,499)

6,050 2,546
6,050 2,546
31,489 . (45,637)

{
Managing Director



Zomend mr»mﬁb_

)

1L

sgquapypruog

*SJUAMR)e]S [RIITENT 9531 Jo ed o) vr miod 7¢ o | sajon Surfuedwonoe s

%521

i A N A L6 T @95 981 000 ¥
969787 {csr'D) 671581 L69'1¥ lsog'e) 0000k
L1s AT = = 5 =
£65's - £es's £55'S B
2 < o (959'2) 9597

BEMST ° o BEP'ST - GEV'ST

LTSt (056D LST'¥ST 07898 (£99°p1T) cod'ocy
Tothee . weew .ﬂﬂﬂ. — 5 ﬂﬂ 0285¢ (£99%17) - 00 0L
(Lse's} 5 [(T753] = -
o00'00E o Sa.Sn - E . 0007002
{LEYSP) a%.: Qﬂ.v& 11T (s5¢'sp)

€81 €8T, (earew

(66#'1) aa. i = i

- @ a (826'0) 876'T
SHo'y 2 SHo'p kO .
A I TEGD - N
18TPE - TTPE 6ol'sg (ave) 5 -
(ove's) - (ope's) - (ove’s) = -
(80°92) asyn) (££9'%7) ¥6s'T {zresn- - - 800'0€1
000 AV
“Inobi [8ey, SIOIEINGD by SHURLR)EIAI] FEE0] PIEINMINUTY  JANSERl ATOIIEIS  [EIJCED SJBhs
gs50d Jo SIBP|OGEYS IDOAJ 10§
IWIWMIXNERANIY LTk DAIDSIX INBA J1E]

B

EZ0T "1€ WIS 18 DNEBY

ﬁuﬁa_—ﬂnaa 03 FgEIngLY 1eak ag) 207 {$50]) Lwodm sasEIgadwed [ej0],
suonediKi0 jgauaq pauLsp uo (s50[) aned Justnanseou-ay

AUnba - [D0A TE POISEAE SUSIAR] JO SNRA I2] U7 SaFEy) JaN

[0 YSnany snpa J1B] 18 PANSEILO SHIMMEAATI JO afeS

SIOPIOYRIEYS TR 0 SNTRINYLLIE fead oty 104 Jipoud Ja

SR ) 20) (S50[) FEIOINT FAISTI 22 INOT)

(porersay} €707 '[ Anmuref 12 3oueiegy

[x7174

(Paressa} 7202 ‘Y J9qmBda(] Je oMl
[Esdey) 209y Ur 852ATIU] J0f 00 UONOBSURL],
rende;) ameys Ul asEaIou]

SAIPIOYDIBNS 0} FAREINQLIE YEIL I3 20 {S501) /SO JAISUIRAIAOS [R30 ),
. siopjoyays sy o} o[qRpMqLE feak SuE JOJ SS0] (B0,

STOREB[q0 11J9USq PSP UE (8501} AED JUNIAINERSII-83

10 UBnGIt) anfea J7e) 12 PORISEIL SURMSIAUL JO afeg

Amnbs — JO0A e PUNSEIUL SIUALSIAWL JO 2ufeA JBJ Uy s2uend JaN

XK ATy 20J (S50)) W0V FAKTIRLmOy

:B«Eﬂe 207 ‘1 Arenuep yu-so0EEy
QYT Joedun norjtseL],

£1-§1 wedun uopsuery,

93.%5 2207 *1 Alenusy ye30uBRY
T

£202 1€ 4EAWED I TAANT VAL THL 04
ALINDE NI STONYVHD A0 INAWILVIS
(ANVAHOD MI0IS INIOF TANYS V)

ANVIWNOD IDNVHENSNI FALLYHIIO00 YNVINY



AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE CDMPANY
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023

2022
Note 2023 (Restated™)
SAR' (00 SAR' 0600
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit / (loss) for the year before zakat 30,719 (44,733)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization 15 1,81% 1,936
Property and equipment writeoff during the year 15 117 -
Provision for end-of-service benefits 21 1,482 1,717
Investments held at amortised cost 12b {54) (127
ECL Provision 63 5
Chenges in operating assets and Habilities:
Insurance contracts assets (11,887) (826)
Reinsurance contracts assets 2,031 15,038
Insurance coniracts liabilities (11,695) (43,805)
Reinsurance contracts libilities (3,151) 2,474
Prepayments and other receivables ' 425 (20,131
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (11,267) {183
Zakat and income tax paid | 20 (300) :
Employees' end-of-service benefits paid 21 (806) (3,536)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (2,712} (92,171)
Cash flows from investing activities ‘
Proceeds from sale of investment held at FYOCI 104,649 12,476
Additions in sale of investment held at FVOCI - (102,163}
Proceeds from maturity of shori-term deposit - 10,000
Addition in maturity of short-term deposit 16 (76,264) -
Proceeds from held at amortised cost - 31,795
Addition in held at amortised cost 12b {4,997) -
Additions in property, equipment and intangible assets 15 1,179) (2,334)
Change in statuary deposit = (45,000)
Transaction cost for Capital Incréase - (5.887)
Net cash inflow from investing activities 22,20% (101,113)
Cash flows fror financing activities _
Issue of right sharés” - 300,000
Net cash from 1i memg scﬂvsties - 300,000
Net change in cash nnd cash eqmvalents 19497 106,716
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 153,762 47,040
Cash and cask equivalents at the end of the year 173,259 153,756
*Comparative information has been restated (refer note 4).
e Ma.nagw Board Mémber M4naging Director

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Amana Cooperative Insurance Company (the “Company”) is a Saudi joint stock company established in Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia by Royal Decres Number M/35 dated Jumada Al-Akher 3, 1431 H (corresponding to May 17, 2010), and registered in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 1010288711 dated Jumada Al-Akher 10, 1431 H (corresponding to
May 24, 2010). The Company’s head office is at Salah-uddin Al-Ayubi Street P.O. Box 27986, Rivadh 11427, Kingdom of Saudi

The purpose of the Company is to transact cooperative insurance operations. Its principal lines of business include medical, motor,
marine, fire, engineering, accident and liability and protection insurance.

On 2 Jumada II, 1424H, corresponding to July 31, 2003, the Law on the Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies (“Insurance
Law") was promulgated by Royal Decree Number (M/32), During March 2008, Insurance Authority (IA) then known as SAMA, as the
principal authority responsible for the application and administration of the Insurance Law and its Implementing Regulations, granted
the Company a license to transact insurance activities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Board of Directors approved the distribution of the surplus from insurance operations in accordance with the Insurance
Implementing Regulations issued by Insurance Authority (IA), whereby the sharcholders of the Company are to receive 90% of the
annual surplus from insurance operations and the policyholders are to receive the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising on insurance
operations is transferred to the shareholders’ operations in full. Post implementation of IFRS 17, the surplus payable is included in the
insurance contract liabilities under LIC.

The share capital of the Company as of December 31, 2023, is amounted to SAR 430 million comprising of 43 million shares of SAR
10 each (December 31, 2022: SAR 430 million comprising of 43 million shares of SAR 10 each). Refer note 24.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023, have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and
pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (“SOCPA™) and in compliance with
Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and By-Laws of the Company.

This is the first set of the Company’s annaual financial statements in which IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts” and IFRS 9 "Financial
Instruments" as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia have been applied and the resultant changes to the material accounting
policies are described in note 3.

The Company’s statement of financial position is not presented using a current/non-current classification. However, the following
balances would generally be classified as non-current: long-term deposits, Property and equipment, intangible assets, statutory deposit,
and employees' end-of-service benefits. All other financial statements line items would generally be classified as current.

As required by the Saudi Arabian Insurance Regulations, the Company maintains separate books of accounts for Insurance Operations
and Shareholders’ Operations and presents the financial information accordingly. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses clearly
attributable to either activity is recorded in the respective accounts. The basis of the allocation of expenses from joint operations is
determined and approved by the management and the Board of Directors.

The statement of financial position, statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows of the insurance opcrations and
shareholders operations which are presented in Note 26 of the financial statements have been provided as supplementary financial
information to comply with the requirements of the Insurance Implementing Regulations and is net required under IFRSs. The
implementing regulations requires the clear segregation of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the insurance operations and
the shareholders operations. Accordingly, the statements of financial position, statement of income, comprehensive income and cash
flows prepared for the insurance operations and sharcholders operations as referred to above, reflect only the assets, liabilities,
income. expenses and comprehensive sains or losses of the respective operations.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the measurement of investments carried at fair
value through statement of income (FVTPL) and investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI),
investment in equity accounted investments which is accounted for under the equity method, defined benefits obligation recorded at
the present value using the projected unit credit method and liability of incurred claims (LIC) and assets for incurred claims (AIC)
recorded at the present value at the current discount rates.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements in compliance with IFRS, the balances and transactions of the insurance
operations are amalgamated and combined with those of the sharcholders’ operations. Interoperation balances, transactions and
unrealized gains or losses, if any, are eliminated in full during amalgamation. The accounting policies adopted for the insurance
operations and shareholders’ operations are uniform for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Going concern

The Company has posted a net comprehensive income of SAR 31.48 million (2022: Comprehensive loss of SAR 45.63 millien), the
Company’s accumulated losses as at December 31, 2023, are 43.39% (December 31, 2022: 45.92%) of the Company’s share capital
and as of the same date the Company’s solvency reached 210% (December 31, 2022: 105.66%). These events and conditions indicate
a material uncertainty on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. In this respect the management has prepared three
years forecast which exhibits net profits from year 2024. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on going concern
assumptions.

(c) Functional & presentation currency

Amounts in these financial statements arc expressed in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SAR) and are rounded off to the nearest thousands
except where otherwise mentioned. Saudi Arabian Riyals (SAR) is the functional currency of the Company as well. Transactions
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi Riyals at rates prevailing on the dates of such transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Saudi Riyals at rates prevailing on the reporting date, All
differences are taken to the statement of income. Foreign exchange differences are not significant and have not been disclosed
separately.

(d) Seasonality of operations
There are no seasonal changes that may affect the insurance operations of the Company.

(e} Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires managementi to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying
notes disclosures including disclosure of contingent liabilitics. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these financial statements:

Insurance and reinsurance contracts

i. PAA Eligibility Assessment

The Company has applied the Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) only for contracts with a coverage period of 12 months or less.
As this policy applies uniformly to all contracts based on their length, assessments to identify material differences between the model
outcomes, for contracts where the coverage period was more than one year, have been deemed unnecessary.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(e) Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions {continued)

ii. Liability for remaining coverage

Acquisition cash flows

For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Company is cligible to whether it recognize insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense
when it incurs those costs or to include those cash flows within the liability for remain coverage (and hence amortize those cash flows
over the coverage period).

The company had opted to recognize an asset for insurance acquisition cash flows paid and amortized those cash flows over the
coverage period.

Significant financing component

The Company has assessed its Liability for Remaining Coverage (LRC) and Assets for remaining coverage (ARC) and concluded that
no significant financing component exists within LRC and ARC respectively. Therefore, the Company has not adjusted the carrying
amount of the LRC and ARC to reflect the time value of money and the effect of financial risk using the discount rates, for contracts
with a coverage period longer than one year.

Expected premium receipts adjustment

nsurance revenue will be adjusted with the amounts of expected premium receipts adjustment calculated on premiums not yet
collected as of the date of the statement of financial position. The computation is performed using IFRS 9 simplified approach to
calculate Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance. The corresponding impact of this adjustment is recorded in the LRC,

jii. Liability for incurred claims )
The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as Chain
Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods,

The main assumption underlying these tcchniques is that a Company’s past claims development experience can be used to project
future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods extrapolate the development of paid and incurred losses,
average costs per claim (including claims handling costs), and claim numbers based on the observed development of earlier years and
expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analyzed by accident years, but can also be further analyzed by
geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by
being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In most
cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is uscd
to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in external or market
factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial decisions and legislation, as well
as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling procedures) in order to arrive al the estimated ultimate
cost of claims.

Estimates of salvage recoveries and subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the LIC.
The allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the third party.

These are projected using a combination of chain ladder technique and as a proportion of the corresponding claims.

iv. Onerosity determination

For contracts measured under GMM and VFA, A group of contracts is onerous at initial recognition if there is a net outflow of
fulfilment cash flows. As a result, a Liability for the net outflow is recognized as a loss component within the liability for remaining
coverage and a loss is recognized immediately in the statement of income in insurance service expense. The loss component is then
amortized to statement of income over the coverage period to offset incurred claims in insurance service expense. For contracts
measured under PAA, the Company assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial recognition unless facts and
circumstances indicate otherwise.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(e) Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions {continued)
iv. Onerosity determination (continued})

The Company also considers facts and circumstances to identify whether a group of contracts are onerous based on the following key
inputs:

- Pricing information: Underwriting combined ratios and price adequacy tatios. This input is most relevant for the Medical and Motor
insurance portfolio;

- Historical combined ratio of similar and comparable sets of contracts for Motor, P&C and Medical portfolios in particular;

- Any relevant inputs from underwriters;

- Other external factors such as inflation and change in market claims experience or change in regulations; and

- For subsequent measurement, the Company also relies on the same group of contracts® weighted actual emerging experience.

v. Expense attribution

The Company identifies expenses which are directly attributable towards acquiring insurance contracts (acquisition costs) and
fulfilling /maintaining (other attributable expenses) such contracts and those expenses which are not directly attributable to the
aforementioned contracts (non-attributable expenses). Acquisition costs, such as underwriting costs including other expenses except
for initial commission paid, are no longer recognized in the statement of income when incurred and instead spread over the lifetime of
the group of contracts based on the passage of time.

Other attributable expenses arc allocated to the groups of contracts using an allocation mechanism considering the activity-based
costing principles. The Company has determined costs directly identified to the groups of contracts, as well as costs where a
judgement is applied to determine the share of expenses as applicable to that group.

On the other hand, non-directly atiributable expenses and overheads are recognized in the statement of income immediately when
incurred. The proportion of directly aftributable and non-attributable costs at inception will change the pattern at which expenses are

recognized.

vi. Estimates of future cash flows

The Company primarily uses deterministic projections to estimate the present value of future cash flows and for some groups it uses
stochastic modelling techniques. A stochastic model is a tool for estimating probability distributions of potential ocutcomes by
allowing for random variation in one or more inputs over time. The random variation is usually based on fluctuations observed in
historical data for a selected period using standard time-series techniques.

The following assumptions were used when estimating future cash flows:

- Mortality and morbidity rates (insurance risk and reinsurance business)

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of contract written and the territory in which the
insured person resides. They reflect recent historical experience and are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Company’s own
experiences. An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made for expected future improvements. Assumptions are differentiated
by policyholder gender, underwriting class and contract type. An increase in expected mortality and morbidity rates will increase the
expected claim cost which will reduce future expected profits of the Company.

- Expenses
Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in—force policies and associated overhead

expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base, adjusted for expected expense inflation if
appropriate.

An increase in the expected level of expenses will reduce future expected profits of the Company. The cash flows within the contract
boundary include an allocation of fixed and variable overheads directly attributable to fulfilling insurance contracts. (Such overheads
are allocated to groups of contracts using methods that are systematic and rational, and are consistently applied to all costs that have
similar characteristics).
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

{e) Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)
vi. Estimates of future cash flows (continued)

- Lapse and surrender rates

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non—payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary termination of
policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumplions are determined using statistical measures based on the Company’s
experience and vary by product type, policy duration and sales trends. An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would
tend to reduce profits of the Company, but later increases are broadly neutral in effect.

vii, Discount rates

Under the bottom-up approach, the discount ratc is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity
characteristics between the financial assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash flows (known as an
‘illiquidity premium’). Management uses judgement to assess liquidity characteristics of the liability cash flows.

viii. Risk adjustment for non-financial risk

Risk adjustment reflects the compensation that is required for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows
from non-financial risk as the Company fulfils insurance contracts. For reinsurance centracts held, the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk represents the amount of risk being transferred by the Company to the reinsurer.

For non-lifc insurance contracts, the Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency)
approach at the 65th percentile. That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all product lines (as an indication
of the compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as being equivalent to the 65th percentile confidence level less the
mean of an estimated probability distribution of the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the probability distribution of the
future cash flows, and the additional amount above the expected present value of future cash flows required to meet the target
percentiles.

The Company disaggregates changes in the risk adjusiment for non-financial risk between insurance service result and insurance
finance income or exXpenses.

ix. Sensitivities on major assumptions considered while applying IFRS 17

The sensitivity analysis is done to evaluate the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit / loss before tax and equity for reasonably
possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions in notes 2 and 3 held constant. The correlation of assumptions will
have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact due te changes in each assumption,
assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are nonlinear.

The sensitivity analysis performed during the year and has been presented under Note 25.

x. Amortization of the contractual service margin

Under GMM/ VFA approach, the CSM is a component of the asset or liability for the group of insurance contracts that represents the
unearned profit the Company will recognize as it provides services in the future. The amount of the CSM for a group of insurance
contracts is recognized in the statement of income as insurance revenue in each period to reflect the services provided under the group
of insurance contracts in that petiod. The amount is determined by:

- Identifying the coverage units in the group

Allocating the CSM at the end of the peried (before recognizing any amounts in statement of income to reflect the services provided
in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future

- Recognizing in statement of income the amount allocated to coverage units provided in the period.

The number of coverage units in a grovp is the quantity of coverage provided by the contracts in the group, which the Company
determines by considering the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected coverage duration. The total coverage units of each
group of insurance contracts arc reassessed at the end of each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of remaining coverage for
claims paid, expectations of lapses and cancellation of contracts in the period. The Company then allocates them based on probability-
weighted average duration of each coverage unit provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
(e) Critical Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

xi. Impairment losses on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 across relevant financial assets requires judgement, in particular, for the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by the outcome of modelled ECL scenarios, and the relevant inputs used.

(f) Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards which are effective in current year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended 31 December 2023. These standards,
interpretations and amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on
the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures and impact of IFRS 17 as disclosed in note 3.1.

Effective from annual period
beginning on or after:

- I[FRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice 1 January 2023
Statement 2)

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to [AS 8) 1 January 2023

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 1 JTanuary 2023
Transaction {Amendments to IAS 12)

- Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS ¢ — Comparative Information 1 January 2023
(Amendment to IFRS 17)

- International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Medel Rules (Amendments to LAS Issued on 23 May 2023 with
12) immediate effectiveness

(g) New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following new accounting standards, interpretations and amendments have been issued by the IASB that are effective in future
accounting periods. The Company intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they
become effective.

Effective from annual pericd
beginning on or after:

- IFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related 1 January 2024
Financial Information

- IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures 1 January 2024

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1 January 2024
1y

- Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) 1 January 2024

- Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) 1 Janvary 2024

- Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and [FRS 7) 1 January 2024
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below.

New IFRS Standards, IFRIC interpretations and amendments thereof, adopted by the Company
The Company has applied following standards/IFRIC including any consequential amendments to other standards,
from 1 January 2023. These standards have brought significant changes to the accounting for insurance and
reinsurance contracts and financial instruments:

- IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

- IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
The nature and effects of the key changes in the Company’s accounting policies prepared for IFRS 9 and 17 are
summarized below:

i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts for annual periods on or after 1 January 2023. The Company has
restated comparative information for 2022 applying the transitional provisions in to IFRS 17. The nature of the
changes in accounting policies can be summarized, as follows:

Changes to classification and measurement

The adoption of IFRS 17 did not change the classification of the Company’s ingurance contracts. IFRS 17
establishes specific principles for the recognition and measurement of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance
contracts held by the Company.

Under [FRS 17, the Company’s insurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held are eligible to be
measured by applying the PAA except for Engineering for which PAA eligibility testing was performed. Based on
the results no material difference observed in the measurement of liability for remaining coverage between PAA and
General Model, therefore, these qualify for PAA The PAA simplifies the measurement of insurance contracts in
comparison with the general model in IFRS 17.

The measurement principles of the PAA differ from the ‘earmned premijum approach’ used by the Company under
IFRS 4 in the following key areas:

+ The liability for remaining coverage reflects premiums received less deferred insurance acquisition cash flows
and less amounts recognized in revenue for insurance services provided.

+ Measurement of the liability for remaining coverage involves an explicit evaluation of risk adjustment for non-
financial risk when a group of contracts is onerous in order to calculate a loss component (previously these may
have formed part of the unexpired risk reserve provision)

. Measurement of the liability for incurred claims (previously claims outstanding, incurred-but-not- repotted
(IBNR) claims and other technical reserves, claims payable and surplus distribution) is determined on a
discounted probability-weighted expected value basis and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial
risk. The liability includes the Company’s obligation to pay other incurred insurance expenses.

+ Measurement of the asset for remaining coverage (reflecting reinsurance premiums paid for reinsurance held) is
adjusted to include a loss-recovery component to reflect the expected recovery of onerous contract losses where
such contracts reinsure onerous direct contracts.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

The Company capitalizes insurance acquisition cash flows for all product lines. The Company allocates the
acquisition cash flows te groups of insurance contracts issued or expected to be issued using a systematic and
rational basis. Insurance acquisition cash flows include those that are directly attributable to a group and to future
groups that are expected to arise from renewals of contracts in that group. Where such insurance acquisition cash
flows are paid (or where a liability has been recognized applying another IFRS standard) before the related group of
insurance contracts is recognized, an asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is recognized. When insurance
contracts are recognized, the related portion of the asset for insurance acquisition cash flows is derecognized and
subsumed into the measurement at initial recognition of the insurance liability for remaining coverage of the related

group.

Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification

Insurance contracts are contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from a policyholder by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. In
making this assessment, all substantive rights and obligations, including those arising from law or regulation, are
considered on a contract-by-contract basis. The Company uses judgement to assess whether a contract transfers
insurance risk (i.e., if there is a scenario with commercial substance in which the Company has the possibility of a
loss on a present value basis) and whether the accepted insurance risk is significant.

An insurance contract with direct participation features is defined by the Company as one which, at inception, meets
the following criteria:
« the contractual terms specify that the policyholders participate in a share of a clearly identified pool of
underlying itemns;
+ the contractual terms expect to pay to the policyholder an amount equal to a substantial share of the fair value

returns on the underlying items; and
« the contractnal terms expect a substantial proportion of any change in the amounts to be paid to the policyholder

to vary with the change in fair value of the underlying items.
Investment components in Savings and Participating products comprise policyholder account values less applicable
surrender fees.

The Company uses judgement to assess whether the amounts expected to be paid to the policyholders constitute a
substantial share of the fair value returns on the underlying items.

Insurance contracts with direct participation features are viewed as creating an obligation to pay policyholders an
amount that is equal to the fair value of the underlying items, less a variable fee for service. The variable fee
comprises the Company’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, which is based on a fixed percentage of
investment management fees (withdrawn annually from policyholder account values based on the fair value of
underlying assets and specified in the contracts with policyholders) less the FCF that do not vary based on the
returns on underlying items. The measurement approach for insurance contracts with direct participation features is
referred to as the variable fee approach (VFA).
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance and reinsurance contracts classification (continued)

The VFA modifies the accounting model in IFRS 17 (referred to as the GMM) to reflect that the consideration an
entity receives for the contracts is a variable fee.

Direct participating contracts issued are contracts with direct participation features where the Company holds the
pool of underlying assets and accounts for these Groups of contracts under the VFA.,

Fair Value Gains on Unit-Linked Investments: These gains are directly related to insurance contracts issued and may
not represent realized gains on investments. Their presentation aims to provide a more comprehensive view of our
financial performance.

All insurance contracts originated by the Company are without direct participation features.

In the normal course of business, the Company uses reinsurance to mitigate its risk exposures. A reinsurance
contract transfers significant risk if it transfers substantially all the insurance risk resulting from the insured portion
of the underlying insurance contracts, even if it does not expose the reinsurer to the possibility of a significant loss.

All references to insurance contracts in these financial statements apply to insurance contracts issued or acquired
and reinsurance contracts held, unless specifically stated otherwise.

Unit of account
The Company manages insurance contracts issued by product lines within an operating segment, where each product
line includes contracts that are subject to similar risks. All insurance contracts within a product line represent a
portfolio of contracts. Each portfolio is further disaggregated into Groups of contracts that are issued within a
calendar year (annual cohorts) and are:

- contracts that are onerous at initial recognition (if any)

- contracts that at initial recognition have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently; or

- a Group of remaining contracts. These Groups represent the level of aggregation at which insurance contracts

are initially recognized and measured. Such Groups are not subsequently reconsidered (if any).

For each portfolio of contracts, the Company determines the appropriate level at which reasonable and supportable
information is available to assess whether these contracts are onerous at initial recognition and whether non-onerous
contracts have a significant possibility of becoming onerous. This level of granularity determines sets of contracts.
The Company uses significant judgement to determine at what level of granularity the Company has reasonable and
supportable information that is sufficient to conclude that all contracts within a set are sufficiently homogeneous and
will be allocated to the same Group without performing an individual confract assessment.

Contracts issued within participating product lines are always priced with high expected profitability margins, and
thus, such contracts are allocated to Groups of contracts that have no significant possibility of becoming onerous at
the time of initial recognition.

Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from portfolios of insurance
contracts issued. Applying the grouping requirements to reinsurance contracts held, the Company aggregates
reinsurance contracts held concluded within a calendar year (annual cohorts) into groups of

- contracts for which there is a net gain at initial recognition, if any;

- contracts for which at initial recognition there is no significant possibility of a net gain arising subsequently; and

- remaining contracts in the portfolio, if any.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

Recognition

The Company recognises groups of insurance contracts it issues from the earliest of the following:
- the beginning of the coverage period;
- the date when the first payment from the policyholder is due or actually received, if there is no due date; and
- when the Company determines that a Group of contracts becomes onerous.

The Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held it has entered into from the earlier of the following:

- the beginning of the coverage period of the group; or

- the initial recognition of any underlying insurance contract.
The Company adds new contracts in the reporting period in which that contract meets one of the criteria set out
above.

Surplus Distribution

The Company has reclassified the opening balance of surplus distribution payable to its policyholders into the
liability for incurred claims. The surplus arising for the period, if any, will be treated or adjusted in fulfillment cash
flows and it will be allocated to each line of business on a rational basis. The actual allocation of surplus over the
relevant LOBs might vary as it will be done after the year end closure as per the Surplus distribution policy issued
by the Insurance Authority (IA) previously known as SAMA.

Contract boundary

The Company uses the concept of contract boundary to determine what cash flows should be considered in the
measurement of Groups of insurance contracts. This assessment is reviewed every reporting period. The Company
includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows within the boundary of each
contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from substantive
rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which the Company can compel the policyholder to
pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive obligation to provide the policyholder with insurance

contract services.
a. the Company has the practical ability to reprice the risks of the particular policyholder or change the level of

benefits so that the price fully reflects those risks; or
b. both of the following criteria are satisfied:
i. the Company has the practical ability to reprice the contract or a portfolio of contracts so that the price fully

reflects the reassessed risk of that portfolio; and
ii. the pricing of premiums related to coverage to the date when risks are reassessed does not reflect the risks
related to periods beyond the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract is not
recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.

Measurement Model Application

The Company applies the Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues and
reinsurance contracts that it holds for which the coverage period is less than one year. For other contracts issued and
held where the coverage period is more than one year, the Company performs PAA Eligibility testing as mentioned
in section 2 to confirm whether the PAA may be applied. Subject to passing the PAA eligibility testing, the
Company applied PAA on contract issued and reinsurance contracts held that pass the testing.
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i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Measurement Model Application (continued)

When measuring liabilities for remaining coverage, the PAA is broadly similar to the Company’s previous
accounting treatment under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Company now
discounts cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred
and includes an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

Insurance contracts measured under the PAA
‘The Company uses the PAA for measuring contracts with a coverage period of one year or less and on contracts that

pass the eligibility testing as mentioned in section 2.

On initial recognition of each group of contracts, the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage is
measured at the premiums received on initial recognition minus any insurance acquisition cash flows allocated to the
group at that date, and adjusted for any amount arising from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously
recognised for cash flows related to the group (including assets for insurance acquisition cash flows}.

Subsequently, the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage is increased by any premiums received and
the amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows recognised as expenses, and decreased by the amount
recognised as insurance revenue for services provided and any additional insurance acquisition cash flows allocated
after initial recognition. On initial recognition of each group of contracts, the Company expects that the time
between providing each part of the services and the related premium due date is no more than a year.

The Company recognises the liability for incurred claims of a group of insurance contracts at the amount of the
fulfilment cash flows relating to incurred claims. The future cash flows are discounted unless they are expected to be
paid in one year or less from the date the claims are incurred.

The carrying amount of a Group of insurance contracts issued at the end of each reporting period is the sum of:
a. the LRC; and
b. the LIC,

The carrying amount of a Group of reinsurance contracts held at the end of each reporting period is the sum of:
a. the remaining coverage; and
b. the incurred claims,

For insurance contracts issued, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the LRC is:
a. increased for premiums received in the period;
b. decreased for insurance acquisition cash flows paid in the period;
c. decreased for the amounts of expected premiums received recognized as insurance revenue for the services
provided in the period; and
d. increased for the amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows in the period recognized as insurance service
expenses.

For reinsurance contracts held, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the remaining coverage is:
a. increased for ceding premiums paid in the period; and
b. decreased for the amounts of ceding premiums recognized as reinsurance expenses for the services received in
the period.
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i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)

The Company does not adjust the LRC for insurance contracts issued and the remaining coverage for reinsurance
contracts held for the effect of the time value of money as insurance premiums are due within the coverage of
contracts, which is one year or less.
Insurance contracts not measured under the PAA
On initial recognition, the contracts not measured under PAA are recorded as a total of group of insurance
contracts:

a. the fulfilment cash flows, which comprise estimates of future cash flows, adjusted to reflect the time value of

money and the associated financial risks, and a risk adjustment for non-financial risk; and
b. the CSM.

The fulfilment cash flows of a group of insurance contracts do not reflect the Company’s non-performance risk.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk for a group of insurance contracts, determined separately from the other
estimates, is the compensation required for bearing uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows that
arises from non-financial risk.

The CSM of a group of insurance contracts represents the unearned profit that the Company will recognise as it
provides services under those contracts. On initial recognition of a group of insurance contracts, if the total of:
- the fulfilment cash flows,

- any cash flows arising at that date and
- any amount arising from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously recognised for cash flows

related to the group (including assets for insurance acquisition cash flows)

If the total is a net inflow, then the group is not onerous. In this case, the CSM is measured as the equal and opposite
amount of the net inflow, which results in no income or expenses arising on initial recognition.

If the total is a net outflow, then the group is onerous. In this case, the net outflow is recognised as a loss in profit or
loss. A loss component is created to depict the amount of the net cash outflow, which determines the amounts that
are subsequently presented in profit or loss as reversals of losses on onerous contracts and are excluded from
insurance revenue.

The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at each reporting date is the sum of the liability for remaining
coverage and the liability for incurred claims.
The liability for remaining coverage comprises

- the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be provided under the contracts in future periods and

- any remaining CSM at that date.

The liability for incurred claims includes the fulfilment cash flows for incurred claims and expenses that have not yet
been paid, including claims that have been incurred but not yet reported.

The fulfilment cash flows of groups of insurance contracts are measured at the reporting date using current estimates
of future cash flows, current discount rates and current estimates of the risk adjustment for non-financial risk.
Changes in fulfilment cash flows are recognised as follows.

- Changes relating to future services — Adjusted against the CSM (or recognised in the insurance service result in

profit or loss if the group is onerous)
- Changes relating to current or past services — Recognised in the insurance service result in profit or loss
- Effects of the time value of money, financial risk and changes therein on estimated future cash flows —

Recognised as insurance finance income or expenses
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i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance contracts not measured under the PAA (continued)

The CSM of each group of contracts is calculated at each reporting date as follows:
Insurance contracts without direct participation features
The carrying amount of the CSM at each reporting date is the carrying amount at the start of the year, adjusted for:
- interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during the year, measured at the discount rates on nominal
cash flows that do not vary based on the returns on any underlying items determined on initial recognition,
- the CSM of any new contracts that are added to the group in the year;
- changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, except to the extent that:
a) any increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed the carrying amount of the CSM, in which case the excess is
recognised as a loss in profit or loss and creates a loss component; or
b) any decreases in the fulfilment cash flows are allocated to the loss component, reversing losses previously
recognised in profit or loss;
- the effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM; and
- the amount recognised as insurance revenue because of the services provided in the year

Changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services comprise:

- experience adjustments arising from premiums received in the year that relate to future services and related cash
flows, measured at the discount rates determined on initial recognition;

- changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the liability for remaining coverage, measured
at the discount rates determined on initial recognition, except for those that arise from the effects of the time
value of money, financial risk and changes therein;

- differences between
a) any investment component expected to become payable in the year, determined as the payment expected at
the start of the year plus any insurance finance income or expenses related to that expected payment before it
becomes payable; and
b) the actual amount that becomes payable in the year,

- differences between any loan to a policyholder expected to become repayable in the year and the actual amount
that becomes repayable in the year; and

- changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future services.

Changes in discretionary cash flows are regarded as relating to future services and accordingly adjust the CSM.

Direct participating contracts
Direct participating contracts are contracts under which the Company’s obligation to the policyholder is the net of:

- the obligation to pay the policyholder an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying items; and
- a variable fee in exchange for future services provided by the contracts, being the amount of the Company’s
share of the fair value of the underlying items less fulfilment cash flows that do not vary based on the returms on
underlying items. The Company provides investment services under these contracts by promising an investment
return based on undetlying items, in addition to insurance coverage.
When measuring a group of direct participating contracts, the Company adjusts the fulfilment cash flows for the
whole of the changes in the obligation to pay policyholders an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying
items. These changes do not relate to future services and are recognised in profit or loss. The Company then adjusts
any CSM for changes in the amount of the Company’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, which relate to
future services, as explained below.
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i) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (continued)
Insurance contracts not measured under the PAA (continued)

The carrying amount of the CSM at each reporting date is the carrying amount at the start of the year, adjusted for:
- the CSM of any new contracts that are added to the group in the year;
- the change in the amount of the Company’s share of the fair value of the underlying items and changes in
fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, except to the extent that:

a) the Company has applied the risk mitigation option to exclude from the CSM changes in the effect of
financial risk on the amount of its share of the underlying items or fulfilment cash flows;

b) a decrease in the amount of the Company’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, or an increase in
the fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, exceeds the carrying amount of the CSM, giving rise to a
loss in profit or loss (included in insurance service expenses) and creating a loss component; or
¢) an increase in the amount of the Company’s share of the fair value of the underlying items, or a decrease in
the fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, is allocated to the loss component, reversing losses
previously recognised in profit or loss (included in insurance service expenses)
- the effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM; and
- the amount recognised as insurance revenue because of the services provided in the year
Changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services include the changes relating to future services
specified above for contracts without direct participation features (measured at current discount rates) and changes
in the effect of the time value of money and financial risks that do not arise from underlying items — e.g. the effect of
financial guarantees.

Reinsurance contracts not measured under the PAA
To measure a group of reinsurance contracts, the Company applies the same accounting policies as are applied to
insurance contracts without direct participation features, with the following medifications.

The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts at each reporting date is the sum of the asset for remaining
coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset for remaining coverage comprises:

- the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be received under the contracts in future periods and

- any remaining CSM at that date.

The Company measures the estimates of the present value of future cash flows using assumptions that are consistent
with those used to measure the estimates of the present value of future cash flows for the underlying insurance
contracts, with an adjustment for any risk of non-performance by the reinsurer. The effect of the non-performance
risk of the reinsurer is assessed at each reporting date and the effect of changes in the non-performance risk is
recognised in profit or loss.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the amount of risk being transferred by the Company to the reinsurer.

On initial recognition, the CSM of a group of reinsurance contracts represents a net cost or net gain on purchasing
reinsurance. It is measured as the equal and opposite amount of the total of:

- the fulfilment cash flows;

- any amount arising from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously recognised for cash flows

- any cash flows arising at that date; and

- any income recognised in profit or loss because of onerous underlying contracts recognised at that date.
However, if any net cost on purchasing reinsurance coverage relates to insured events that occurred before the
purchase of the group, then the Company recognises the cost immediately in profit or loss as an expense.
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Reinsurance contracts not measured under the PAA (continued)

The carrying amount of the CSM at each reporting date is the carrying amount at the start of the year, adjusted for:
- the CSM of any new contracts that are added to the group in the year,
- interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during the year, measured at the discount rates on nominal
cash flows that do not vary based on the returns on any underlying items determined on initial recognition;

- income recognised in profit or loss in the year on initial recognition of onerous underlying contracts;

- reversals of a loss-recovery component to the extent that they are not changes in the fulfilment cash flows of the
group of reinsurance contracts;

- changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, measured at the discount rates determined on
initial recognition, unless they result from changes in fulfilment cash flows of onerous underlying contracts, in
which case they are recognised in profit or loss and create or adjust a loss-recovery component;

- the effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM; and

- the amount recognised in profit or loss because of the services received in the year.

Reinsurance of onerous underlying insurance contracts
The Company adjusts the CSM of the group to which a reinsurance contract belongs and as a result recognises

income when it recognises a loss on initial recognition of onerous underlying contracts, if the reinsurance contract is
entered into before or at the same time as the onerous underlying contracts are recognised.

The carrying amount of the CSM at each reporting date is the carrying amount at the start of the year, adjusted for:
- the amount of the loss that relates to the underlying contracts; and
- the percentage of claims on the underlying contracts that the Company expects to recover from the reinsurance
contracts.

If the reinsurance contract covers only some of the insurance contracts included in an onerous group of contracts,
then the Company uses a systematic and rational method to determine the portion of losses recognised on the
onerous group of contracts that relates to underlying contracts covered by the reinsurance contract.

A loss-recovery component is created or adjusted for the group of reinsurance contracts to depict the adjustment to
the CSM, which determines the amounts that are subsequently presented in profit or loss as reversals of recoveries
of losses from the reinsurance contracts and are excluded from the allocation of reinsurance premiums paid.

Insurance acquisition costs
The Company includes the following acquisition cash flows within the insurance contract boundary that arise from
selling, underwriting and starting a Group of insurance contracts and that are:
- costs directly attributable to individual contracts and Groups of contracts; and
- costs directly atiributable to the portfolio of insurance contracts to which the group belongs, which are allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to measure the group of insurance contracts.

Before a group of insurance contracts is recognized, the Company could pay directly attributable acquisition costs to
originate them. When such prepaid costs are refundable in case of insurance contracts termination, they are recorded
as a prepaid insurance acquisition cash flows asset within other assets and allocated to the carrying amount of a
Group of insurance contracts when the insurance contracts are subsequently recognized.
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Insurance acquisition costs (continued)

The acquisition costs are generally capitalized and recognized in the statement of income over the life of the
contracts. However, for contracts under PAA approach, there is an option to recognize any insurance acquisition
cash flows as an expense when the Company incurs those costs. The company has elected not to choose the option
and has capitalized the costs which would then be recognized over the life of contracts. No separate asset is
recognized for deferred acquisition costs. Instead, qualifying insurance acquisition cash flows are subsumed into the
insurance liability for remaining coverage.

Insurance revenue

As the Company provides services under the group of insurance contracts, it reduces the LRC and recognizes
insurance revenue. The amount of insurance revenue recognized in the reporting period depicts the transfer of
promised services at an amount that reflects the portion of consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for those services.

For contracts not measured under the PAA, insurance revenue comprises the following:
+ Amounts relating to the changes in the LRC:
a. insurance claims and expenses incurred in the period measured at the amounts expected at the beginning of the
period, excluding:
i. amounts related to the loss component;
ii. repayments of investment components;
iii. amounts of transaction-based taxes collected in a fiduciary capacity; and
iv. insurance acquisition expenses;
b. changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, excluding:
i. changes included in insurance finance income (expenses);
ii. changes that relate to future coverage (which adjust the CSM); and
iii. amounts allocated to the loss component;
¢. amounts of the CSM recognized in statement of income for the services provided in the period; and
d. experience adjustments arising from premiums received in the period that relate to past and current service and
related cash flows such as insurance acquisition cash flows and premium-based taxes. flows such as insurance
acquisition cash flows and premium-based taxes.
+ Insurance acquisition cash flows recovery is determined by allocating the portion of premiums related to the
recovery of those cash flows on the basis of the passage of time over the expected coverage of a Group of contracts.

For Groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the Company recognizes insurance revenue based on
the passage of time over the coverage period of a Group of contracts. Insurance revenue is adjusted to allow for
policyholders’ default on future premiums. The default probability is derived from the expected loss model
prescribed under IFRS 9.
Insurance service expenses
Insurance service expenses include the following:

- incurred claims and benefits excluding investment components;

- other incurred directly attributable insurance service expenses;

- Insurance acquisitions costs incurred and amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows;

- changes that relate to past service (i.e. changes in the FCF relating to the LIC); and

- changes that relate to future service (i.e. losses/reversals on onerous Groups of contracts from changes in the

loss components).
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Insurance finance income or expenses
Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of insurance
contracts arising from:
a. the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and
b. the effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.
For contracts measured under the GMM, the main amounts within insurance finance income or expenses are:
a. interest accreted on the FCF and the CSM;
b. the effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions; and
¢. foreign exchange differences arising from contracts denominated in a foreign currency.
For contracts measured undet the VFA, the main amounts within insurance finance income ot expenses are:
a. changes in the fair value of underlying items;
b. interest accreted on the FCF relating to cash flows that do not vary with returns on underlying items; and
¢. the effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions on the FCF relating to cash flows that do
not vary with returns on underlying items.
For contracts measured under the PAA, the main amounts within insurance finance income or expenses are:
a. interest accreted on the LIC; and
b. the effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions.
The Company disaggregates changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk between insurance service result
and insurance finance income or expenses.

Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held
The Company presents financial performance of Groups of reinsurance contracts held separately between the
amounts recoverable from reinsurers and allocation of the premiums for reinsurance contracts held, comprising the
following amounts:

- reinsurance eXpenses;

- incurred claims recovery;

- other incurred directly attributable insurance service expenses;

- effect of changes in risk of reinsurer non-performance;

- for contracts measured under the GMM, changes that relate to future service (i.e. changes in the FCF that do not

- adjust the CSM for the Group of underlying insurance contracts); and

- changes relating to past service (i.e. adjustments to incurred claims).

Reinsurance expenses are recognized similarly to insurance revenue. The amount of reinsurance expenses
recognized in the reporting period depicts the transfer of received services at an amount that reflects the portion of
ceding premiums the Company expects to pay in exchange for those services.

For contracts not measured under the PAA, reinsurance expenses comprise the following amounts relating to
changes in the remaining coverage:

- insurance claims and other expenses recovery in the period measured at the amounts expected to be incurred at
the beginning of the period, excluding repayments of investment components;

- changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, excluding:
changes included in finance income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held; and
changes that relate to future coverage (which adjust the CSM};

- amounts of the CSM recognized in statement of income for the services received in the period; and

- ceded premium experience adjustments relating to past and current service.
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To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity
instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the entity’s business model for managing the
assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. The classification of financial assets are:

(a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost;
(b) Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and
(c) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

(a) Financial assets at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as

FVTPL:
(i) The asset is held within a “business model” whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;

(i) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and profit (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.

(i) Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets

to achieve its business obiective.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case’ or 'stress case’
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the
Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets
held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased
financial assets going forward.

(t) SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test. ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are
repayments of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of profit within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies judgement and considers
relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated. and the veriod for which the profit

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual
cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and profit on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be
measured at FVTPL.
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(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Debt instruments at FVOCI
The Company applies the category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments measured at FVOCI when both of the
following conditions are met:

+ The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows and selling financial assets;
« The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

This category only includes debt instruments, which the Company intends to hold for the foreseeable future, and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions. The Company
classified it¢ debt instruments at FVOCI Debt instruments at FVOCI are subject to an impairment assessment under
IFRS 9: -

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Company may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model. In addition, on
initial recognition the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset as FVTPL that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of statement of income.

Recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

Debt instrument at amortized cost

Afier initial measurement, financial assets are measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. Financing income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment when the investments are impaired are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is recognized in the profit or loss.
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Debt instrument at amortized cost (continued)

Debt instruments that are measured at FVOCI category are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising due to changes in fair value recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortized cost.

On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified from the statement of comprehensive income to the statement of income.

Equity instruments that are measured at FVOCI category are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in the statement of income when the Company’s right to receive payment is established,
unless they clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of income.
Cumulative gains and losses recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are transferred to retained
earnings on disposal of an investment.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets that are measured at FVTPL category are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recorded in the statement of income. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is
recorded using a contractual interest rate. Dividend income is recorded in the statement of income when the right to
the payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assefs

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset
in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing
additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards and has retained
control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognized only to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement, in which case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred assets and the
associated liabilities are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount at the daie of derecognition and

the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognized in the
statement of income or statement of comprehensive income as the case may be.
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Impairment of financial assets
In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed to an

incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The Company applies the expected credit losses (‘ECL’) on its financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, which are in the scope of IFRS 9 for impairment. The Company
recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.
The measurement of ECL reflects:

* Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

* The time value of resources; and
* Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about

past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Expected credit losses are recognized in two stages, 12-month expected credit losses and Lifetime expected
credit losses.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset exists, the impairment for assets carried at
amortized cost, impairment is based on estimated future cash flows that are discounted at the original effective
commission rate.

Credit impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt
investments at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Recognition:

Losses are recognized in statement of income and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers
that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset (either partially or in full), the relevant amounts are
written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease is related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed in
statement of income.

Presentation of loss allowances in the statement of financial position:
Loss allowances for expected credit losses are presented as follows:
* financial assets measured at amortized cost: the loss allowance is deducted from the gross carrying amount of

the assets;
* the ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in

the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that
would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income with a corresponding charge to the statement of income.

The calculation of ECLs
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
* PD: The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is
estimated with consideration of economic scenarios and forward-looking information.
* EAD: The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest,
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, and acerued interest from missed payments.
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ii) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The calculation of ECLs (continued)
+ LGD; The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. Tt is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Company would
expect to receive. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company allocates its assets subject to ECL calculations to one of these categories, determined as follows:

Stage 1- 12-month ECL (12ZmECL):

The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of lifetime ECLs (LTECLs) that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. The Company
calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the
reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the
expected LGD and discounted by an appropriate effective interest rate (EIR).

Stage 2- LTECL:
When an instrument has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an

allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of multiple
scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected losses are discounted
by an appropriate EIR.

Stage 3- Credit impaired:
For debt instruments considered credit-impaired, the Company recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for
these instruments. The method is similar to that for LTECL assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward-looking information as economic inputs, such
» GDP growth
* Inflation

- Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated
as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are
credited to expected credit loss expense. There were no write-offs over the period reported in these financial
statements.

- Receivable from brokers / agents

Insurance contracts sold via brokers where brokers have collected the premiums from the insured and not yet paid to
the Company are classified as "reccivable from brokers / agents". The balances are outside the contract boundary of
insurance contracts issued and are subject to impairment assessment based on simplified approach of IFRS 9. Under
IFRS 9 simplified approach, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses for Insurance receivables embedded within the LRC.

- Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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- Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy tests are perfermed to ensure the adequacy of the
insurance contracts liabilities net of related deferred policy acquisition costs. In performing these tests management
uses current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses. Any
deficiency in the carrying amounts is immediately charged to the statement of income by establishing a premium
deficiency reserve arising from liability adequacy tests accordingly.

- Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultancously. Income and expense is not offset in the statement of income
unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting
policies of the Company.

- Property and equipment

Property and equipment is measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value if
any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Expenditure for repair and
maintenance is charged to the statement of income. Improvements that increase the value or materially extend the
life of the related assets are capitalised. Depreciation is charged to the statement of income on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets are:

Years
Leasehold improvements 5
Furniture and fittings 5
Computer and  office 4
equipment
Motor Vehicles 4

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in statement of income.

Capital work-in-progress includes projects that to be commissioned in future. When commissioned, capital work-in-
progress will be transferred to the respective category within property and equipment, and depreciated in accordance
with the Company’s policy.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included
in “Other operating income” in the statement of income.

- Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

- Provisions, acerued expenses and other liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from past events, and the
costs of settling the obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses. Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether
billed by the supplier or not.
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- Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units).

- Imvestment property
Investment property represents land and buildings that are held for capital appreciation purposes. Land and buildings are

stated at cost less recognized impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the statement of income in the year of retirement or
disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in
use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property.

- Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi Arabian
Riyals at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the
statements of income and comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as of the date of the initial transaction and are not
subsequently restated. Foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are recognized in “Other
operating income” in the statement of income and statement of comprehensive income.

- Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks including certain time deposits with less

than three months maturity from the date of acquisition.

- Short-term deposits
Short-term deposits comprise of time deposits with banks with maturity periods of more than three months and less

than one year from the date of acquisition.

- Employees’ end-of-service benefits (EOSB)

The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws.
Accruals are made at the present value of expected future payments in respect of services provided by the employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to the expected
future wages and salary levels, experience of employee departures and period of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate bonds like dollar
denominated KSA Sovereign Bonds with terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows. The benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls due. Re-measurements
(actuarial gains/ losses) as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.
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- Zakat and taxes

Zakat and income tax are provided in accordance with the Regulations of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority
(ZATCA) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Zakat provision is charged to the statement of income. Zakat is
computed on the Saudi shareholder's share of the zakat base, while income tax is calculated on the foreign
sharcholder's share of adjusted net income. Income tax is charged to the statement of income. The Company is
seftling the zakat and income tax annuaily te ZATCA whereas Zakat and income tax is accrued on a quarterly basis,

- Deferred income tax:

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for the taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits can be
utilized. The deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will
be realized.

- Cash flow statement
The Company’s main cash flows are from insurance operations which are classified as cash flow from operating

activities. Cash flows generated from investing and financing activities are classified accordingly.

- Operating segments
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing products or services (a
business segment), which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those of other segments. For
management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their products and services and has
the following reportable segments:

= Medical insurance provides coverage for health insurance.

* Motor insurance provides coverage for vehicles' insurance.

+ Property & Casualty insurance provides coverage for Property, Engineering, Marine and other general

insurance.

Segment performance is evaluated based on statement of income which, in certain respects, is measured differently
from statement of income in the financial statements.

No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year. If any transaction was to occur, transfer prices between
business segments are set on an arm's Iength basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Shareholders’ income is a non-operating segment. Income earned from time deposits and investments is the only
revenue generating activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are allocated to this
segment on an appropriate basis.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the chief executive officer that makes sirategic
decisions.
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- Leases

The Company assesses whether the coniract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is
the lessee, except for short-term leases {defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets. For these short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
+ fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;
*+ variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;
* the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

* the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
= payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate

the lease

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
{using effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made,

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)

whenever:
* the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case

the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

* the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating

interest rate, in which case a revise discount rate is used).
* a lease contract is medified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the

lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,
» The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If
a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use of asset reflects that the Company
expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
undetlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has not used this practical
expedient. For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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- Leases (continued)
The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified

impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment” policy.

- Other operating income
Income from Haj and Umrah fund is recognized as other operating income on the basis of quarterly financial

statements released by the Fund Manager.

- Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Company’s by-laws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its annual net income from

shareholders’ operations each year to the statutory reserve until it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital.
The reserve is not available for distribution.

- Intangible assets

‘Intangible assets are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortization. They have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. The Company amortises
intangible assets with a limited useful life using straight-line method over 4 years.
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4. TRANSITIONAL NOTE
This is the Company’s first annual financial report prepared in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 17 and IFRS 5.

The accounting policies set out in note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for year ended December 31, 2023
and December 31, 2022 and in the preparation of an opening IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 statement of financial position at 1 January 2022
(the Company’s date of transition) and 31 December 2022.

In preparing its opening IFRS 17 statement of financial position, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial
statements under IFRS 4.

At 1 January 2022, the Company applied the following approaches to identify and measure certain groups of contracis in the Property
& Casualty, Motor and Medical / Health segments on transition to IFRS 17.

|Contract meagured Full retrospective approach (FRA) from 2017 to 2021
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4.

TRANSITIONAL NOTE (CONTINUED)

EXPLAINATION TO TRANSITION TO IFRS 17, IFRS 9 AND OTHER CHANGES

Reconcilimion of interim condensed of financial position as at 1 January 2022;
Statement of Finaocial Position 1st January 2022
Preadoptionof |[ IFRS 17 ] IFRS 8 ] | Pro-adoption of |
ASSETS IFRS 17 & IFRS 9 | |Reclussification Re-messurement Reclassification Re-measurement || IFRS 17 & IFRS 9
SAR' 600
Cash and cash equivalents 47,049 - - 47,040
Short term deposits 10,000 - 10,000
Premiums and reinsurances' receivable 87,543 (87,543) -
Reinsurers' share of unearhed premiwms 1,433 (1,433) - = <
Reingurers’ ghare of outstanding claims 1,267 {1,267y - = ]
Reinsurers' share of claims ncurred but not
reported 1,205 (1,205) -
Insurance coniract assets - 17,707 17,707
Reinsurance contract agsets - 20,595 - - 20,595
Deferred policy acquisition ¢osts 12,606 (12,506) - = = -
Avail able-for-sale investments 15,182 - - {15,182) - -
Held-to-maturity investments 44,198 - - (44,198) #
Trvestments designated a3 FVOCI - - 15,132 35,109 50,291
Investments held at amartised cost - - 44,198 44,198
Prepayments and other asséts 14,312 (3,230) = = 11,582
Property and equipment 6,085 - - - 6,083
Intangible assets 575 - - - 575
Statutory deposit 19,500 - - - 19,500
Accrued income on siatutory deposit 2,989 - - - - 2 089
TOTAL ASSETS 264£5 {104,054) 35!072 - 35,10 230,563
LIABILITIES
Policytiolders ¢laims payable 3,488 (3,488} . .
Accrued expenses and other lisbifities 42,013 (9,883) 2 32,135
Reinsurance balances payable 8,176 (8,176) - = - =
Uneamed premiums 113,295 (113,295) - - -
Insurance contract liabilities - 178,158 178,158
Reinsurance contract fabilities - 5,658 - - 5,658
Uneamed reinsurance commission 242 (242) - - - .
Qutstanding claims 21,401 {21,401) - o
Claima incurred but not reported 58,250 (58,250) 3
Premiums deficiency reserve 27,167 (27,167 -
{Other technical reserve 3,818 (3.818) - .
Employees' end-of-service benefits (EQSB) 5,342 - - - 5,342
Surplus distribution payable 779 (779) - - -
Provision for zakat and income tax 3,559 - - 3,559
Accrued income payable to  Insurance
Authority 2,989 = - - - 2,980
TOTAL LIABILITIES 290,819 (246,504) 183.816 = - 227,831
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 130,000 = - - 130,000
Accumulated loss (157,227 . (5,346) - (548) (163,521)
Fair value reserve for FYOCL investments 2,594 - - - 35109 37,703
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' (24,633) - (5,345} - 34,161 4,182
Re-measurement of EOSE related to insurance
operations (1.451) - - - - (L451)
TOTAL EQUITY (L451). - s = B (L,45L)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 264,435 (246,504 178,470 - 34,161 230,562
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q

Reconciliation of interim cc
Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Short term deposits

Premiums and reinsurances' recei able
Reinsurers' share of unearned premiums
Rei ! share of o ding claims

Reingurers' share of claims incurred but not

reported
Insurance contract assets
Reinsurance cantract assets
Deferred policy acquisition cosls
Available-for-gale investments
Held-to-maturity investments.
Investments degignated as FVOCI
Investments held at amortised cost
Prepayments and other assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Statutory deposit
Accrued income on statutory deposit
TOTAL ASSETS

LIARILITIES

Paolicyholders claims payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Reinsurance balances payable
Uneamed premiums

Insutance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract liabilities
Unearned reinsurance ¢ommission
Outstanding claims

Claims incurred but not reported
Premiums deficiency reserve
Other technical reserve

Employees' end-of-service benefits (EOSB)

Surplus distribution payable
Provision for zakat and income tax
Acerped
Authority
TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital
Accumulated loss

Fair value reserve for investments at FYOCI

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS'

Re-measurement
insurance operations
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

income payable to Insurance

of EOSB related to

of financial p asrt3l Dy ber 2022:
31st December 2022
Pre-adoption of |I IFRS 17 IFRS 9 || Pro-adoption of
IFRS 17 & TFRS ¢ || Reclassification Re-measurement | | ification Re-measurement || TFRS 17 & IFRS %
SAR’ 000
153,762 = & (&) 153,756
76316 (70,318} - -
1,436 (1,436} -
1,688 {1,638} -
744 (744) = - -
18,533 - 13,533
- - 5,557 - : 5,557
13,376 (13,376) -
106,243 = (106,243)
12,530 - (12,530} - =
- 106,243 37,780 144,023
- 12,530 {5} 12,525

35,151 - {3,438} 3L713

6,391 - - - 6,351
667 = - 667

64,500 . - = 64,500

3,787 - - - - 3,787
470,591 87,560 20,652 - 37,769 441,452
3,582 (3,582) - - - -

42,280 (10,338) - - 31,942
9,212 {9,212)

95,240 (95,240} - - - -

- . 134,353 . 134,353
- 5 8,132 - - 8,132
214 (214} 2 B

24,357 {24,357} -

46,210 {46,210) - -

14318 (14,318) 2 5 = z
1,228 (1,228) - -
5,022 - - 5,022

410 (410 - 3 g a
7,008 = - 7.009
3,787 - - - - 3,787

252,869 m5!109! 142,485 - - 191,245
430,600 - e 430,000
{210,368} - (4,234) {2,928} 2,917 {214,663)
1,040 - - 2,928 34,852 38,820
2205672 - {4.284) - 37,769 254,157
{2,950) - - - - {2,950)
’Zgﬁﬂ! - = = = {2,950}
470,591 {205,109} 138,201 = 37.769 441!452
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4, TRANSITION NOTE (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of interim cendensed statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022:

IFRS 17 IFRS %
Pre-adoption of Re- Re- Re- Post adaption of

For the year December 31, 2022 IFRS 17 & IFRS 9 classification measurement classification measurement IFRS 17 & IFRS 9

SAR' 000

Insurance revenue 237,700 - 237,700
Irgurance service expenses = - (267,935) * (267,935}
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts - (15,292 - - (15,292)
Insurance service result - (45,52 - - {45,527)
Grods premium written 230,515 (230,513) - -

Less: reinsurance ceded - Local (602) 602 - -
Less: reinsurance ceded - Foreign (2,978) 2978 - -
Less: XOL (24,280) 24,280 - - - -
Net premiums written 202,655 {202,655) - - P -
Changes in unearned premiar - net 13,056 (18,056) - - - -
Net premiums earned 220,711 {220,711) - =
Reingurance commission income 628 (628) - . .
Other underwriting income 17,715 (18,331) 516 n

TOTAL REVENUES / NET INSURANCE

SERVICE RESULT 239,054 {239,670) (44,911 - - (45,527)

UNDERWRITING CQSTS AND EXPFNSES
Gross claims paid (inchuding settlement
expense) {219,339) 219,339 - -

Less: Reinsurers' share 12.09% (12,059 - - - “
Net Claims Paid (207,240) 207,240 - - -
Changes in qutstanding claims 5,489 (5,489) =
Changes in reinsurers' share of outstanding
claims 420 (420) , .
Changes in IBNR 3,587 {3,587) - - -
Changes in reinsurers' share of IBNR (452) 452 - - - -
Net Claims incorred (198,196) 198,19 - N N
Changes in premiums deficiency reserve 12,849 (12,849 - - .
Changes in other technical reserves 2,589 (2,589) - -
Policy acquisition costs (29,885) 25,885 = - -
Inspection and supervision fees {8,820) 8,820 - - - N
Net income {exy } from rei
contracts held (23.267) 23267 - =

TOTAL UNDERWRITING COSTS AND

EXPENSES (221,463) 221,463 - - = N
Net investtnent income - - 1,823 - 1,823
Credit loss allowance - - = - (1)} {11
Net investment income - - - 1,823 (11) 1,812
Finance income from insurance contracts
issued - - 1,961 - 1,961
Net finance income - - 1,961 - - 1,961

Net underwriting income/(Joss) / Insurance

and investment results 17,591 (18,207} (42,950) 1,813 {11} (41,754)

OTHER QPERTAING (EXPENSES) /

INCOMFE,

Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts (8,874) 8,874 - -

General and adrinistrative expenses (57,263) 57,263 = -

Investment income 1,823 - - (1.823) - -

Realized loss from sale of available-for-sale

investments 2928 3 = - {2,928) -

Cther operating income 17,099 - 17,009

Other operating expenses - - {15,953) - {4,125} (20,078)
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING (EXPENSES)

{INCOME (61,386) 33,236 (15,953) {1,823} (7,053) 2.979)
(Loss) before surplus & zakat (43,795) 65,029 (58,903) - (7,064) (44,733}
Income attributed to the insurance
operations (transfer to surplus payable) - - - - - -
Income atiributed to the sharcholders
before zakat (43,79%) 65,029 58,903 = (7;064! (44,733)
Zakat charge (3,450} - 2 - (3:450)

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTED TO THE

SHAREHOLDERS AFTER ZAKAT {47,245) 65,029 (58,903) - (7.064) {48,183}
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AMANA COOQPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

4.

TRANSITION OF STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reclassification and remeasurement impact on the statement of financial position on adoption of IFRS 17

Impact on Equity:
Drivers of Changes in Equity

Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract assets
Discounting impact

Total Impaet

Impact on Insurance Contract Liabilities:

Drivers of Changes

Additional Deferred Acquisition Costs
Risk Adjustment

Loss Compenent

Discounting impact

Total Impact

Impuact on Reinsurance Contract Assets

Drivers of Changes

Reinsurance Risk Adjustment & Discounting
Reinsurance Default Provision

Total Impact

Impact on equity on transition to IFRS 17 on
January 1, 2022

Decrease by SR 7.1 million
Increase by SR 0.05 million
Increase by SR 1.7 million

Decrease by SR 5.35 million

Impact en liabilities on transition to IFRS 17 on
January 1, 2022

Decrease by SR 6.3 million
Increase by SR 3.9 million
Increase by SR 9.5 million

Decrease by SR 1.7 million

Increase by SR 5.3 million

Impact on assets on transition to IFRS 17 on
January 1, 2022

Increase by SR 0.07 million
Decrease by SR 0.02 million

Increase by SR 0.05 million




14

601°SF - 601°Se Wedm] 8301,
60T°SE - 601°5¢E TDOAd
Q] O—Nm .—O.ﬁ D—Aﬁ.ﬁmﬂbﬁ Eo.q vmmmmmﬂﬁuu.n $]38SE Qﬂﬂ. uo mvw—ﬂwﬂﬂ 0=—d> hmﬂm

(6 SHAD IDOAM 1¢ 51955V [FUETL]

(8¥6) (8¥6) = Poudwy |60 ],
(3¥6) (8r6) - SO[qBAI209Y JAUIO UO SSO] Npal)) paroadxy
(6 SUAT) 51500 PIZNIOWY JE SJAsSY [epueul]

(6 MSAD JUDWIIINSEIW WOTLEIJISSRD SIE[MOIEJ

7707 Axenuer | - |
uoIjI ST"pE WS Aq sBADUY Pedu] [Ej0],
UOI|[IW G6°0 US AQ 95BII99(] S]OSER JOUBINSUL UQ Joedull JUSTISINSLIY
uolfjIu ['g€ S Aq 2seatouf I[DOAA Te $1988Y [erouent,] uo joedwr uoneoIsse[o-ay / UOLBILISSE[D
7207 T Arenuep

Aymbyq ur soduey)) Jo SIFALIY
TApmbey wo jovdiay

uoe ¢ SHAI 0 uompsusay uo Lnbd uo pedurg

6 SYAI 0) uonisuern

0} snp Aynbs uo yoeduw [eUl 91 I8 SALLIE 03 7707 AXetare[ | JO Se § YT YHA SOUBPI0OOE UI PauTULIa)ep ssuemofe T4 Suruado 0 1707
Iaquiaa(] [ JO S8 6€ SV JO JuatuaInseowr a1} Iad se paplosas uoisiaoid pue asUemolfe JusuLTedI o) Sa[IDU00IL S3]GE) FUIMO[[O] ST,
{UOEN[EAII PUE $)ISSY [eUENL Jo JuduLiieduy

6 S.I1 Jo uondope uo uonised [eroueuy JO JUSWREIS Y} UC Jordl JUSWAMSEIWL PUB TOIEIISSE|d3

(QANNLLNOD) SINAINALVLS A0 NOLLISNVIL ¥

€207 ‘1€ HAAWADAA AANT 4VIA THYL HO4
{TANNLINOD) SINAWALYLS TYIONVNIA THL OL SILON
{ANVANOD MDOLS INIOr [ANVS V)

ANVINOD IDNVIUNSNI FALLVITId00D YNVINV



14

JOU ‘SATYIQEN % SIISSB JORII0D IIULINSUIY [€)0],

SSNI[IGe]] 19eU0d 2URINSUISY [2I0],
Arense)) % Asadoid - £7°¢
0N -TTS
[edIPIN - ['T'S
SSTIIGRI] DENU0D OURMSUINY —
SJISSE JOBNUOD JURINSUITY B0 ],
Ayrense)) 7 Aadord - €°7°¢
1010 - Z°TS
[P - 1'T'S
§)OSSE JOBNUOD QUBINSUIY —

SJIB.HUCD DUBIMSUIIY

jJou ‘SaNI[IQEI] % SJISEE JOEIIUOD RUELINSU] [BJO L,

{Leer1) SLST sSSPl

859°C TEI'8 186'

1T TIL 566

+96°F 08€°€ 7L

€49 oro'y PorT'1

$65°0T LSS'S 975

81#°T 86€°CT 8P6°1

85¢ 1+8 1LT1

618°L1 8I€T LOE

57001 08 SIl 3¢T06
8S1°3LI £SEPET 8S9°TTI

961 1st'¥ STF'E

057°68 381°LS oF8pT

TIL98 FILTL L8EP6

LOL'LY £ESBI a3

8t L89 L9T'1

44 F8's €59°€1

LET'LT F00°Z1 00S°s1

000 MVS
(payeisay) (parersay) yoeoaddy
J2Q U9
2707 Arenuer | TTOT 1quIana(g 1¢ €70z 24 arte

woREN[EA

SATIIGEI] JORNUOD SOURINSU] [B)O],
Kypense)) 2 Apadoig - €°1°¢
100N - T'T°S
[P - T'T'S
SOLM[IQRI] JPRNUOD JDULMSU] —
§)9SSE JOBRIUOD S0URINsSu] [210]
fyense) 7 Apedoird - €17
100 - T'1°S
[eOPSIN - T°T°§
$)285€ JORIUOD 3dURINSU] —

SouE[e(q JOBAJI0I RIULINSU]

LT-SHAI ¥EANN SIDOVILNOD HONVUSNIZY ANV ADONVHASNI 'S

€207 1€ YITWIDAA CAANT ¥VIA THL Y04

(TINNIINOD) SINAWALVLS TVIONVNIA THL OL SILON

(ANVIIOD MDOLS INIOT IA1VS V)
ANVAINOD TINVHNSNI JALLVHAJ 00D VNVIYV



iy

=

0Z8CI1  08CE £06'1L 961 1¢ Thr 6l 8€T 26 E0EC 1887CC SLL'G £LTLT adurjeq Jmsop PN
(eesgy - (on) - (LIC8T) ozroel (b} - - [CITa3] sasse urso)
ECEPEL  08TE 616'1L 96117 $$6°LE $59°TT1  LOET 18878 SLLG 689°LS sanypqer Bursols
0T8'SIT  08C€ £06°TL 961'1T TFF61 8T 06 £0€T L897TC SLL'6 €LTLT aour[eq IO PN
Gos 8y - - - (605 87) [(FZATIE - - (LTL1s) smoff yses uopisinboe somemsuy
(s1p'1e) - (s1'18E) - - (seg'st) - (se8'sz) - - pred sasuadxe uopsinbae-tou sjqeinqinye ARoan
(ckL'elT) - (EPL'EIT) - - (989°L11) - (og5°211) - < pred swigrD
TOL'OZE - . . TOL'0ZT 9c8°t6l - : - 9¢8'E61 POAISIAI SUMIUIAI]
SMO[J ys€)
biTe0) 109 (38L7cEC) 85091 cc8 881 0612 LL6 [ETEE 741 TV il L6CPEL SIOOUT JO JUSWAIE)S UT PASIUZ0021 SIUNOUE [B0],
1961 - 196°1 - - (1se'ny - (1891} - = [PONSS $HIUTUOD JDULINSUT WO} 535N SOUEUL
(cez'oe) 109 {6rL'sET) §50'91 $S8'88I 1186 LLE [ZZ¥%43] TZF'T1 L6TTEL JMEIT IDVTAIIE JdUEINFUY
seeL9r  (109) 6FL'SET (850°91) SHE'SY woL'oer  (Lig) ¥I8'TTL az¥'in ThE‘0S RsuHx3 3198 IuRINSU]
- - - - - 180°E - 160°¢ - - s1aploqoriod oy uonnaqrsip snyding
(g1 . (47817 eS8 - - 1¥£°0S pRIMOUL JS0I :cﬂ_m..awu.m FusINSUl
(gs0’91) - v (850°91) ’ (1Z¥Fin - - az'in - SIIBOUOS SNOISUO UO (STREI3ASI SSO[) / 895507]
(L9991}  (88t°c} (6L1°€1) - e (oo¥'1z)  {(80LT) {(T69°81) - - SWTELS PRI JOJ SSTITIqET| o) Sunelar saduey)
600°TE 6b0°1E CE8'ST - SE8°ST B . sasuadxs uogsmboe-uou SqEINqINIE Aj1oauiq
99L0TC  LBBT 6LRLIT T9e'FIl 1821 nEY'ZLI - - SWIRIO paIMA]
saruadxe dMAI2S DOUDIRSU]
(ooLLET) - (00L°2£2) (8£9°481) - - - (359'v31) SNUOAST SSmETNSUY
JWOINT JO JUITIIRIS A} UT SIBURY)
ISF09T  18R'E €LT'ER PSTLE £r0'9E 0Z8'STT  0RT'E €06°TL 96117 1#F61 aouejeq Smeado j9N
CIQLT  I8%°E £LT €8 PSTLE GSLES £SEPET (BTE 616 1L 9611 8C6°LE sanqiqer Bumadgy
Loty - . . Los'e1) (ges's) - (s1) - (LIg8T) sesse Junadg
000 ,UVS 000 AYS
TAO0)] 56D SMOL] o6
wouwisnlps uaniny jo anfeA i Juruod mod JINING JO IN[BA Judnodwioy
= oy suosead oy yuzuodwod ssoy ss0 Smpnyoxy . yuaurysnlpe ysng yosead o rstodmod ssog ssop Smpnpaxsy
L J0 saEmmEy oL 30 syemysy
OrD [RT 51 1D OaD d
SWIE[? PALINITY J0] SoIqEr]  ABHIdA02 SuINIE w2l 10] SHMIQET] SWIE POLINDWI JOf BMNMEI] 23812400 Surmemad 10§ SPIGEr] Vvd topun sofjoji0d / sywomBas ity
(PIBISOY) TZOT “1€ I2qUW0I( I8 Y €207 1€ 19qR( I8 5V

VVd 19pun [OINSEIE SJIBIIUGD 0] SHMIIGET] PUE 5JI55E JORIIN0D IDURINSU] Jo SIsA[eUY T[S

(TAANILNOD) LT-SHAL HAANN SLOVELNOD TINVHNSNITE ANV ZONVAISNI 5

£T0T ‘T€ HAGWIDIA THANT ¥MVIA ALY, HOA
(@ANNLINOD) SINTWALVLS TYIONVYNIA AHL OL STLON
{ANVAWO) XO0LS LNIOS IQVS V)

ANVINOD IINVIASNT JATLVIIJO0) VNVIY



8¥

TILO9 o981 SOL'EY L8] LOZEL L383L  CTIP1 €BIEE SC9'L 0E9'9E
0z - - - voo'z1) (oos’s1) - - - {00s'sT)
FIL'TL  998°1 SOL'EY 181 11Z'ST 18E€°P6  TIFT 68I'EE 9£9'L OE1'TS

BIL0Y 9981 SULEF TL8T LOTET I888L  ZIIPT 681 €€ 959°L 0£9°9E
(b86'90) - - - (¥8697) (1.6 - - - {1L6'EE}
(60Z'61) - (80T°61) - - (1sv'0T) - {19¥'0Z) - -

(eot‘001) - (Lot'001) - - (co6°2L) - (5s6°LL) - -

9TC'6Hl - - - 975 6F1 6LT'69T - - 6LT'E9T
TE00T 769 (zLcoIn LTL'R HT Il SICFL  ¥PeF {0re'L8) 8L S88'L0L

L8 - LL8 - - (Lye) - (L¥E) - -

16 7£9 (6T} LTL'] T ITT THST sk (€6v'L8) (FRL'S} CRR°LOT
L'zl (zew) &HFTTI (LzL'8} LSL9T o0'TTr  {pSh) £6V°L8 PBLS €TT'8T

= - - - - 168'T - L68°'1 = -

LSL'9T - . LEL'OT £77'3C . . £TTRT
(LZL's) (LT - ¥BL'S . PaLS -

(LoT'T1}  (FEF'D) (€£3'8) - = (s12'81)  (518°T) (006°91) - -

T#8°31 [§2:51¢ - 19402 19¢°0Z - -

EFTECl 7081 #7101 96£'E8  19€1 SE0°Z8 - -

(1oo'sen) - - - {100°seD) (go1°9¢D) - - (BOT°9E1)
SLE'L9  Seb'T 69525 66501 606°L OLL09  998'I S9LEF TL8'T LOT'EL

TILPE  86FTC 695°T8 66501 95061 PILZL 9981 S9LEY [y T1T'sT
(egren)y - - - {eer'en (yoo'z1} - - - (r00'Z1)

000 HVS 000 .9¥S
SO G363 BALO[J EED aunyny
yuammsnipe sy damy 3o snfes yuamodmoed ssoy Juzuodu jusvmsn{pe sy Jo anqes jwesaad ymanedmos ssoq ywemoduioy
o yasaad oy S50] Smpnpaxy o st 50 sy B8O Bupnpyxy
moL 0 BoyTmE ™oL L
[R7§1] QD I'D) STTE PILINIY J0} EDIMGET] [3 g0
SR PRLINDE 10f SoNINgET] 2BwaaA0d Sumrewaa o) SIUINqEIT 23¥12400 FUTNBIIA T0} SAYIIQEr]

(perE1sa) ZZ0T ‘1€ 19qUEIdA( ¢ BY

£207 T 194U IE 7Y

Q0meRq Smso[d JoN
wasse Smso))
sanTIqer 3utso])
aouEpeq Sujso 19N

S0 YsEs uonismboe souBmsT]

pred sasuadxs wonismboe-uou SpqEmMQEIR AR2anN(]
pred sumeq)

PoAlRI G_H-n-m_uuv.-m

SMO[) Y5E)

SWOTT] JO JUSMISE)S W PasTuFooar sjunows 210
PANSST S10RIU0D SouRmSHT WOy sasuadis aoenty
JME FWAIIE FING.MET]

sasuadxa 2014135 JIUBINEU]

s1spjoyforjod oy wopnqroerp snidmg

PaLmoul J503 UOHISMbot JOURINET]

S10BIUOO SNOINO YO (F[RRIGARI S50T} / Sasser]
SUITE[S PARINSUT Tof saLNIqer] o) Sunepar saBuey)
sosuadxs uonrsmbos-wou a[qEINGLINE APSRIL]
SUIB[9 paimouf

sosuadxs BIINLAS DIUDLREUT

SNUSAIL IOTEINSU]

1jo oy w1 10 ]
aoue[eq Jummado yaN
senIqen Sumadg

sjasse Bumad(y

eIy

[ENPRIAl - VVJ JAPIn PRMSEIN I8N0 10§ SINYIEI] PRE RHIFSE IEHU0I IURINSI] Jo SISABEy

(QAANTINOD) LT-S9AT HAANN SLOVHINOD TINVANSNITE ANV TINVENISNI

TTs

s

€702 ‘1€ HAFWADAA IANT HVEA THL 304

(QAONIINOD) SINAWALYLS TYIONVNIA THL OL STLON

(ANVINOD SIDOIS INIOF IINVS V)

ANYJAO0D IDNVHNSNI TAILVHIJ00D VNYINY



314

OFEls ILEL £50'9C ¥Ze 61 365F €L 11 C%d £89°9] 6I1c {1#¥'8)
T - - - (€250 (Esoen) - - - (Ecoen}
88126 ILE'T £50°02 ¥ZE'61 0b+01 IPR¥T_ TER £89'91 611°T TIZ'S
opeis | IET £50°97 FIE 6L 865°F €I 68 £89°01 8ITC (IFF's)
) - - - [{1Fa T3] (9cL’01) - - - [CHATH
(ozg'tn) - (oz8'1D - - (8s6'v) - (886'%) - -

(9Ls'elIn) - (oLs'cID) - - (b0T'6E) - {p0T'65) - -

c5L'99 - - - SSL'99 1Z€'92 - - - 12£°6T
LeTy)  (19) Ficect) TEEL PLOPL 9I5S 655 @Zsre) SOTLT HO9TT

050°T - 050°1 - - (e’ - (see'T) - -

{ozo'ey) (19} (PoEF2T) TEE°L FLOPL 198°9 [ (L8r'eE) SOT'LI PO9TT
GOT'SET 19 213 4| (1ee'e) (988 ¥4 sLoe (6£5) LSFEE Soz'LD 600'1Z

- - - - - 861 - 661 - -

(08 F4 - SIT1T 600°1C - - - 600°1Z
[REA - (1£€'0) - (soz'LD) - - (soz'LT) -

(£96's)  {66) (696°T) - (8ze'D)  (3.9) (ost'D) - -

W - 1Z8°11 - - 286 = 286'F - -

L9S°IT  650°T TISSIT 680°CE  6EE 05L'6Z -

(631°66) - = - (681'56) €19°ey) - - - (c19°ch)
§7T'68  0IE'L SET'ST $59'97 STI'EE IPE'TS 1T £50°97 FTe'6l B6S'Y

05768 0IEl SEI'SC [3XT4 0sTee e8ILE LT £50°9¢ YTesl 0P 01

(2D - - - (¥s4] (zre's) - - - (zva's)

000 VS 000 MVS
SMO) 58 BAG[Y Y50
20N JO INEA aoduoy ammy & IN|BA yrnedmor
oy ywusnipe yysry sasad amp yuanodmod ssey sv0 SPRPXY s yzaamsnpe YT ywosaxd o yusnodmon ssoy FA——
30 soyemmy oL 30 speunsy
Q1D [1:31] Orn [+
SUTIETY PRI 0] SAUIIqer] ErCTEYY) uﬂ.n_umﬂ.u.uh A0} SIRIIqBI] Emuﬁu prumdum 1) SHUIMEr] ERCIETY Mﬂgaﬂuo.- A0) SINIGET]

(Paasay) 7707 ‘1€ BIGUIIIA Je £V

€707 'T€ 13qUIad3( I8 5V

ey SmEeop JaN
E)055E SUT80[)
sanIqel] Sasol)
apwspq 3mso JoN

smOpf ysko uorsmbog aouBmsT]

pred sasuads vonIsmboe-nou JjgENqURE ARSI

pred sume
PRAISNAI SUMTEIAN]
SMO[J YsED

SLIOOW JO JUSWIAYELIS Ui PISE0aT HUNOWE TEI0 L,

PONEST SIPENUOD SoUEmE woxy sasuadie aouenry

JOSAT DIAIFE USR]

A

AL I
s1spjoysornoed o uognguasep snidmg

PaLmOU 1802 UODISMbOR S0UBINSU]

SJOENUOD SIOISIOC U0 (STBSFSARE SSO[) / §8SE0]

ST paumzu aoy SSUMTIE]] o Sner saBwy))

sasuadxe yonsmboe-uou s[qeIngrme Apoai]
SUITe[d palman]

$5UFANT DIALIS DIUDINSUT

SEIAMT SOUCMST]

1jo )5 3 uy O
aoueqeq Jumaado JaN

soniqey Bumadgy
moasse JumadQ

Injopy

I0)0 - YV 12PUN PMEEIW KIBLW0) 40§ SANIIET] PUE S)3s5E JIEI0D SIURIMEN] JO SISAPDY 7[5

(TANNLLNOD) L1-SH4l HAANN SLOVHINGD IDNYHNSNITE ANV BONVIASNT 'S

€707 ‘1€ AW L YIA TIANT 4VIAA THL 504

(AANNLINOD) SINTWILVLS "TVIDNVNIA JHE OL SALON

(ANVINOD MD0IS INIOL 1NV V)

ANVIWOD FONVHNSNI JALLYHIJGOD YNVINY



05

i

FIL'E £F $30°T - 9£9°] 31T 65 SI0E - 9167
(£39) B 91) H (129) ) = = &€921)
IS¥'Y £ 101'T - LOE'T STH'E £9 SI0°E - Lkt
¥OL'E 53 $80°C B 9E0°T BETT [ SI0E = 16}
(r1c) - - - r1e) 000 - - - (000°T}
(58£) (9g¢) - - (98¢) - (98¢} - -
- - % - (Lzs) - (Lzs) - -
18K - - - 185" 9§Z°C - - - 952°Z
$99°¢ 0 6 - LESE GP6'T o1} [T - S08°F
¥ - v - - 1 - I
T£9°C [ [ - LESE BP6'L (97) Pr3') B §08°€
6L8 (0g) (b9) - €6 696'C L] PPEL - 60I'L
- - - - 33 - $56 - -
£LG - - . £L6 601°1 - - - 60T°1
(Lev'T)  {09) (Lee'n) - (LoE) cn (Tre) - -
L8E - L€ - 98¢ , 98¢ - -
956 0¢ 9Z6 - 5.8 1€ S+8 - -
015y - - (01¢") (Lis’y) - * (L16°F)
s¥o's £L 695'7 - 900'T ¥OL'E £ $80'T - 9£9°]
961°) €L 695°C - PSS 157 £F Tore - LOET
(8¥5) - - - (8¥%) (289) - fon) - (1L
000.9YS 00, 9VS
saop) SMOY
- EUD dangmy Jusnodmoed wEED ANy eeuodmoes
oy, ymafpe 1T Jo anfea yuasaad ymanadrea sso ssof Surpnpxy o ysunn(pe sy Jo supea Juasaad yuauodmos ssory s50] durpnpoxy
ap jo sapemysg L am 3o sxEnmsg
(D17} SUME]3 PILinduT 10§ EIDGET] OID (D17 SWER parmou Joj SANTGEr] [FT3Y]
98va9400 Jupmenraa 10§ sapIpqeTY afedar00 SummEA Joj BAHIRAET]

(P¥IS3Y) TTOT 1€ PYURII I8 5V

€707 ‘1€ WM 1% 5

a3un[bq Susop 3N
masse Buser)
saniqel Sursol)
aouuieg Suiso N

m.BO—H -—WHU E_umm_n—._unuﬂ adEmsu]

pred sesuadxe uomsmbor-uow eqqemqupe Apoanc
piod sarey

Ppalaaal SITISL]

SAMOL} 5Ly

SMOSLL JO JISUIAIENS UL PASTS02a1 EMOWIR (210 ],
PanSST FPORALOI GIWEINFTE WIOAT Ssuadxs soupuT]
JEEIT IMAIIS JUBINSO]

535uAUX? 3)MALIE IoUBAMEU]

ssspjogdaned oy vounquostp stydmg

PALIMOUS 3500 UOTISHboB SdURINST]

S)9BNU0D SNOISTO OO (B[RSI5AAT §50]) / 59550
SUITE]D PALMOI 10y SanIIqur| 03 Supefar safuey)
sasuaidxa uomsmbos-uou qune Agoong
STE[D paLmaa]

sasuadan 22T POUDINSHT

IMNBIADT FUTRIMNEU]

¥ JO JUSTIAYE3S A W) saRaeny
asuseq Jumade jaN
sayriqer] Suniad

sjesse Bunredy

Lpense)y 3 Hazdeag

Llense)y p Auadoag - Yy J 12pUn PRINSEIN S)IBIU0D 10§ SAYIMBI] PR £)I550 JIUIN0I JIULINSH] Jo MEA[BUY ¢'['S

(@INNLING LI-SEAT HEAN] SLOVILINOGD IONVENSNITH ANV ZINVHNSNI 5

€702 ‘I HAEWAYEA GAANT AVIA THL 304

(QIANIINOD) SINTIWALV.LS TVIONVNIA FHL QL STLON

(ANVAINOD MDOLS LNIOT IQNLYS ¥)
ANVIWOD INVENSNT FAILVITIO0D YNVIY



15

G0 3 SIF - WITL) TS5F 1) £ SPI'E - T£09'F) aous|Eq Amsop jay
L85 (3 SIoF = 206 975 € 3 SPI'E S SFE ssse Suso))
(ze1's) - - - (ze1'®) (186"} (09) - - (156°} saniqe Jmso[)
TSL57T) Pt 3107 - [(Z140] EErT) t SrTE - {€09°F) ey 3msop JaN
0Z2¢ - 9fE LT - [CIT4] Orre) - Z5EL - (86L 8} SAOf] Q6D [B)0T,
[z - (6773) - () €3] S (3] = BT SMO[J [SED OO
B - - - - (65} - (s51) - - PaAIB20] UOSSILINOD B0 BUIPHE £ V0L
PCELT - 80L'LE - 9l ¥I8'l - 0991 - psl PAAIS3AT UOISSIUTUOD SOURINSUISY
(86b"22) - - - (86+°22) (950'L) - £31 - (6£T°L) ' SOUBAGOAL JSYIO PG FUUTR])
(9107} - - - (o10'2) (L39'1) - - - (£89'1) pred swojmaig
SMO[] Sy
eTsn) ) TOETT [ 065°LT) [T GH (G = L9} W00 Jo JUIWPMIE O W FITANYD [BOL
(z6T's1) 4] T0E'T1 | k4 (065'LD) (976'9) (1€} s - (LL1'9) PPRY SIoERy 122 magy 6wadx JON
86T <1 [{7] 10£2L 1T - (6P 1) {1g) [€TR1] = = SIAMNEUIII WO HYBIIA0D0] SYUNOWS [RID],
- - - - E (G2 - [522] - - TS WD 2TEIE FuipNs / uomsmes 1goud w sfuey)y
1z - - 12 - - - - - - SIIRIU00 FNOIAUC I0F (S[e81aAd) AX3A0I0) SSO} / A10A0D2) §EDT
ELL'TT [{0] 9521k - - (208} (&%) [(37A] - - SUIfE[D PALNOUL U0 S[RIBACTSI SURCIE Ul SaBuEy )
o8 61 Sbs - - 311°1 81 001°1 - - s2euade Jayle 7 S PRUNSD]
00D ASUTAT WO RIQDIZAOIIL SIHINOWY
065°LT - - - 065°LT LLT9 - - - [7AN] SRR FPTRINETIAL JO YRSV
AWGOH JO JUIWANE ). 0L KISawy)y
LEG'PE 85 059°61 (1) (05L'P) (5L8'T) ¥E SI19d - (rTT'L) auvjeq Tomade jaN
S65°0T 5 05961 - 188 158 ¥E SI9F - 506 swsse urado
(859°) - - (1z) (L£9's) (zer's) - - - (ze1's) sanyiqer] Suwadg
000 VS 000 MVS
Ty Jusnodmod U yuzuodmos
yromysnipw 05E2 Bdoqny suinednos Axanaax Jmsn{ps R Ny yuauoduto3 Ararodaax 23pun symamas ; sl od
0 PR Joana R £9A0031-880T s501 5 o PEHT Joaneaymasand  L1aapa2a-5507] 5501 SuIpm V¥d 2P fsogopaod v
oL DA — 0] Supnpxy (U ) P ——— s0] Swpnpxy
(DT¥) sunep pasinom oav) (1Y) smrepz pasmdog Ouv)
VIO IHJEIIA0IX SIANOME 10) S)955Y adu1oA0d SuTHjEmAL A0) SRESY W0 IGRIFANIX KJUNOIE 0] ZIERY alieand Suomanas Jof Rassy
(paryeng) 7702 LE RquEa( JE By £T0Z '1E A3GURII I8 5V

YV JOPUI PMUSEIAU SLISAN0D 1] FHHNGEI] PIUT SJI65E JILA00D ITEINSUIY JO sUUY TG

(TANNLINOD} L1-SHAT HAANA SLOVILNOD IDNVANSNIZYE ANV ADNVINSNT 5

£T0T 1€ WATWADHT TIINT AVIA THL HOA
(GANNILNOD) SLNAWALYLS TYIONYNIA AHL OL SELON
(ANVIIWOD MDOLS LNIOL IA0VS ¥)

ANVANOD IINVHASNI JALLVHEI00D YNVINY



25

T2l - 15T - (O3] (L56) - [ - (A asuejeq Sursop 13N
BIET 8IET - - LOE - L0E - - slagee Bursop)
(ovo's} - - (or0'r) 9T - - oz} sa011qe)] Suiso[)
oy - SIET - Toros) 1256) - [y - (714} ¥uweq Jusop 33N
11Z01 B €0T LT - (26691 (EGE'L) 69571 - {Z90°c) BAAOH i [0,
- - - - - - - - - SMOJ] ST DD
- - - - - - - - PRATRO UOISSILILNOD 37808 BUIPLS / W0I]
- - - - - - - - - PRAIS0AT LOIRS TIIIOY JMIBINEUIFY
€0T°LT - £0Z°LT - - 699°1 699°1 - - SIUIADIALIIYIO PUE SB[
(z66'91) - - - (Z66"01) (z90'c} - - {z90'¢) pred summmard
u_i.ﬂ—.— s
(isv's) - T0LTL - (esE0z) @z9) - [G3] - G¥D UKW JO JUIWIELS Ny @ S2Bwya 0,
(L59'8) - ZOL'TI - 034 879 - {Tve) - {980} Bi#] 1)9%41002 o0E.MEUIAL woay 250dia oy
TOLT1 - [T - - TRE) - (3] - - SIINFUNAT WO FYRIIA0II EJUNOWE [E}O],
- - - - - - - = - . UOISS|IOD 2185 Bulprs / uomsTumos jyord ur afueyy
= - - - - o - - - - SIOPNUOD §O0UD JOJ (§]¥sIoaal L12400ar 550]) 7 1940291 S5O
T0LTT - oLl - - (565) - {665) - - FIUTEIS pALINU] O $H[ERATD SIUNOUTE Ul safumy)
- - - - - (X4 - 15T - - sastads I 29 HITE poLInoU]
BUDINSULDT THOH FIA00 2 SIHITOH Y
65£°0T - - - §5£°07 982 - - - [:1:14 oz 1 JO UDRESO[Y
NOedE] JO JUAWATENS ) | REwrYY
LT - BIRLE - (£L9) ZTe'n - £Ie%T - lope'n) sonejeq Supuade 32N
GI9°LI - 613L] - = 8IET - SIET - - siesse Buadp
(£19) - - - (e15) (ovo'y) - - - (or0'y) samiqer fupedo
000 AVS 000 HVS
safns QERD am)nj ymaucdures «H_a.nno.””o ._nu-u._.hﬂ:a yrauedmoa u_..M.”enES
-~ HEumInipe Joomjesymasaad  Agracdai-asoy [ — o yommsTAPE HERY Joanpea yoasaad  £12.4009a-5807) . n“..S.ﬂ.-.”. L adi
PR — 201 Smpnpxy oL P —— o Smpnpxyg
(1Y) swre)d paumsm Duv} (J1v) Fmup pa.mdin Gavy
LD RIIA0II SJUNOWY JO] 1SSy 28819403 SmnEar A0y S)RsSY U0 IBLIA0IM JUNOWE 20) KAFY  AZXIAN FUPMEIA J0) £1258Y
(Paeisay) 7707 '€ LU0 JE 5V €207 “TE 20QmIdHT I¥ §Y

[BNPIN - YV J [OPUD PANFEHN SIIEII00 30 SANPGES] PUY 53558 1IBIJ000 NIDEMEWIY Jo Asiny [T

(TANNLLNOD) L1-SH4I HEANA SLOVALNOD IINVHISNITS QNY IONVHASNI &

€207 1§ HAGNAYAd GHaNT UVAA IHL 509
(TANNLINOD) SINAIWALVLS TVION VNI THL OL STION
(ANVIIWOD MOOLS INIOP 100 ¥S ¥}

ANVAWOD TINVHNSNI FJAILVIII00D VNVIY



g5

(=K - 3 - T08Te Tsr1y - Tl - 657553 3unqeq Smsep N
8 - [ - - [T - 1LTT - - srasse Suso[)
{ose'e) - - - (o8e') L - - - Tz sani[Lqen Smsory
T - TH8 - (0sEE) Tsv D - 12T - (7] saueyeq Smsop N
[{ET5] $08 B {o05°c} 981%) - (6 - (LLTY) SMOY) AN [0,
- - - - - - - - SMOL} YSED) YD
- - - - - - - PAARI31 UDTERIIIIG S[E3E BUIPY[S /1014
- - - - - - - - P3ARRI TOTSSITULIOY SNTBINSUISY
S0 S08 - - (6} - ) - S3AADIRT JOYIO PUB STTE])
(905°5) - - (905’ LLTy) - - &Ly pred swnyuazg
BARO[) Y5u)
e - 356 - @zee) LG - Z¥ GI15e) 1 o 7E)s 3g) w saBuBg [eje],
(res'z) 886 - (zz6°e) {960°c) - 7z - (615'€) PFi# E1IE000 dULMSORM weay 3soxdxa N
836 - 835 = - v - 1Z¢ - SIATNSU UIGL] I RIIA0II] FJUNOWE [UI0Y,
B B B - - = - - - UOISFTIIRCY S[e08 Fumprys / nossiumwos yoid w auey)
- - - - - - - SIORIUCY SN0IIUO0 J0F (S[E5IAAI A15A0231 8507} 1 AaADGI 5507
986 - 286 - - 5$1 g51 - SWIRE PAINIUY UO 2]qBIIA0IA SHINOWR Ut s3duey)
N - - - - 99T 992 - BKIX3 1910 P SWI[O paLmouy
FOUDNTUIZL WO BQDIIN0I2d SIHOWY
726'C - - - TT6'E 6LE'E - - 615°E surnmwaid SURINSHIAT JO UOHEIO[ Y
IWMOIUL JO JNDINYS YL uy SIBue)
{500') - BSE - (b96°F) (665°T) - g - (p8g‘s} asue[eq Znuade aN
133 - 35¢E - - T+8 - 3 - - 1365w Somuadp
{ro6't) - - - {r96°p) (o8¢} - - - (08e'E) saniiqen] fomedp
000 JVE 000 MVE
ARO[ EMO[)
Juauodmod Juauodmes
gsua amyny yuanoduos 583 aTmn} yaaaodmos
ot yoamsnipe ysng Jo omea yuaread  £12a03ns-ss0] - h_mahaaou . 1mamymipe amy Joonpamasad i oy .”Dma““uo“n 1001y
213 )0 smmnyy of Bmpnpxy [ T . | Bapnpxg
(DIV) s paumsug Quvy (D1v) mmep paimaiy Ouv)
uo q I0] EJRESY afw13400 SUIBWAL S0} BIAEY o g 1 D) SARTY 2819400 3 I ADJ SRSEY
(pea) 7207 '€ Squaaagg Ik 5y €202 '1€ 3qIRB( I8 5y

A0 = YV J2PUN PRMBLIM SJIELI0D 16] SHUMAEN PO SIISTE J30T0T SINEANSUINY J0 S5y

TTH

(QAANLING)) £1-SHAT ¥IAN SIOVELNOD TINVHASNITH ANV IINVENSNI F

€702 'IE HANL a0 CAaNT HYHA JHL 3504
(@ANNLINOD) SINTWALVIS TVIONVNLA THL OL STLON
(ANVIWOD MO0LS LNIOT IA0VS ¥)

ANVAWOD IDNVANSNI FALLYEIJO0) VNVINY



9RY 1 ¥E WSPL = 961 56 £ 1951 < o)
R6ET ¥E CG - 306 B2 13 1951 - SFE
Z12) - - - (1o (566) (ot} - - (596)
9501 ¥E 9L - 961 €56 £ 15T - TL19)
(0662) - (6713 - (R197T) (29871) - (80€) (655°1)

(A%} B (TLE} B {a¥L} (as} - (zg) (92)
- - - - - (est) - (65%) -
E - - a1 P51 - - - el
- - - - £81 - £81 - -
(910') - - - 1510°7) (£89'1) - - - (£29°'1)
(10L°8) (4] T68E) 1T {60E°E) T009%) i) {L61) - T3]
{ros'e) [(%4] {639 [£4 {60¢'s) {009°7) (18) wen) - (2180
(765) [(F4] [E13) [ - [&5) (1£) Ti61) - N
- - - - - (ast) - [G2] - -

¢4 - - 2 - - - - - -

(LL6) [(37] {res) - - (b9£) (6t (c19) - -

) &1 Sks - - 565 31 LLS - -
60L°E - - - 60E°E TLET - - - TLET
LEET 85 £L¥T {1z) L88 959'T ¥ 95T - 961

8P ag €LF1 - L8 S6EC vE A B 806
2 - - (12} - [tafa) - - {zIL)

000 MVE 000 VS
nop yasoodoion oy josuodmos
Jnsomsnipe YEe3 2anpoy jmauodmod i, nipu gsed anjng Juzuoduod 1540391
. IPE Hsny Joonmma masaad  £12A0304-550 - uﬁ_...&Eno.. . o yEums el Joonpaymasasd  Lraasdas-ssery [r—
meL a1 Jo sarempEg 0] Smypopxy ™oy . P — -589] Smpopxy
(D1V) susp pasinzuy Duv) (v} smrep paunidug Ouav)
U0 JIIA0] FIUBMOE 0] EIESY aldesaa00 Bujupemas doj SRSy 00 A EIIAGILI KJUNOWE I0) SIIEEY afws2a02 Suymewmar Jof gIssy
(P 7707 £ QAR I8 BV €707 ‘1€ A2qmadg 1€ sy

FuEeq Surmop AN
spossw Fumoy)
sanrjqei| Butsoly

NuEeq Jumop 1Ay

SMO[) Ysed 0]
SMOY Y5E SN0

PAAIZO UCTSSTUIIOS O[89 SUIPTS / 1501d
PRAIRIAI TOTSEMIWOY JIURINSUIDY
$OUIA0IAT INNO PUR FKITE])

pred sunjualg

FAOY EE)

jo ap o 92 B L

PI3Y 5IEA0T FIDTINSWI W) 3adEL PN

BIIOSUIT W04 IEIIA0II FYTUDOME [H)OL,
UOISSIIIUED A[eos Fuypis / uolsgTmos yposd ur afuryy
FIORTUCD ENOIUO 10] (S[EF13A21 AJRADORN 580[) 7 A19A0D3 8507
SB[ PILMALL UO A[qRIIACAL sHuncwe Ul safumyy

595Udx3 IO 7 SWIE|D pALRJUL

FOUD.LRSHIIL tOLL BIGOLRAOIDI SIHROIY

uad 191 J0 UOBEO]|Y
JAWOIWE JO JUIWAE)S AN} Uf F2E0EY)

auejeq 3npuado 19N

£Rese Fmuadg
sanmqern Somadg

Ayense]) p Ldo.ry

Ayense) % Ldoag - VY PN PAUNSEIW SIIELN02 10) SHNINGEL PUE FI8EE JIBIUOD SIUCINSORY Jo STABOY  £TS

(QANNLLNOO) LT-SHAT HHANNA SIOVILNOD IINVENSNITY NV TONVHNSNI 5

€707 1€ HATWID I GAANT A VIA THL HOJ
{GAANIINGD) SLNTWALYLS TYIONVNIA dH1 OL SE.LON
(ANVIWOD MDOLS LNIOT ILVS ¥)

ANVIWOD IDINVEASNI JALLVATJO0D VNVINY



AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

6. INSURANCE REVENUE 2023 2022
SAR' 000
Contracts measured under the PAA
Premium earned on insurance contracts issued 184,638 237,700
Total Insurance Revenue 184,638 237,700
INSURANCE SERVICE EXPENSES
Contracts measured under the PAA
Incurred claims (114,361) ({220,766)
Directly attributable non-acquisition expenses (25,835) (31,049)
Changes relating to liabilities for incurred claims 21,400 16,667
Loss reversals on onerous contracts 11,421 16,058
Insurance acquisition cost incurred (50,341) (48,845}
Surplus distribution to policyholders {3,051) -
Total Insurance Service Expenses (160,767) (267,935)
Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts held 23,871 (30,235)
Allocation of reinsurance premiums
Premium ceded on reinsurance contracts held (6,177) (27,590)
Total Insurance Service Expenses (6,177) (27,590)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims (149) 12,298
Net expense from reinsurance contracts held (6,326) (15,292)
Insurance Service Result 17,545 (45,5122
7. GROSS PREMIUM WRITTEN AND PREMIUM CEDED
Premium wriiten during the year is as follows: For the year ended December 31, 2023
“Property &
Medical Motor Casualty Total
SAR' 000
- Corporate enterprises 8,505 5,127 1,457 15,089
- Medium enterprises 4,051 6,352 170 10,573
- Small enterprises 46,598 920 118 46,806
- Very Small enterprises 90,378 10,731 - 101,109
Total Gross premiums written 149,532 22.300 1.745 173,577

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Property &
Medical Motor Casualty Total
SAR' 000
- Corporate enterprises 3,243 10,360 2,673 16,276
- Medium enterprises 7,738 1,800 87 9,675
- Small enterprises 15,673 8,369 1,689 25,731
- Very Small enterprises 117,703 61,114 16 178,833
Total Gross premiums written 144,407 81,643 4,465 230,515
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

9.

140.

11.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following: Insurance operations
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR’000
Cash and bank balances 20,857 56,161 21,368
Deposits maturing within 3 months from the acquisition date 16,716 - -
ECL on Cash and Cash Equivalents (1) - -
Tetal 37,572 36,161 21,368

Shareholders’ operations
December 31, BPecember 31, January 1,

2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR'000
Cash and bank balances 3,155 2,601 25,672
Deposits maturing within 3 months from the acquisition date 132,556 95,000 -
ECL on Cash and Cash Equivalents 24) (6) -
Total 135,687 97,595 25,672
Total cash and cash equivalents _;73,259 153,756 47,040

Deposits are maintained with financial institutions and have a maturity of threc months or less from the date of acquisition.
These earn commission at an average rate of 5.99% per annum as at December 31, 2023 (December 31, 2022: 4.73% per
annumy}.

Bank balances and murabaha deposits are placed with counterparties with sound credit ratings under Standard and Poor’s and
Moody'’s ratings methodology.

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS: Shareholders’ operations
December 31, December 31, Janyary 1,
2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR’000
Shert term deposits 76,264 - 10,000
ECL on short Term Deposits (48) = -
Total short term deposits 76,216 - 10,000

Deposits are maintained with financial institutions and have a maturity of more than three month and less than one year from
the date of acquisition. These earn commission at an average rate of 6.01% per annum as at December 31, 2023 (December
31, 2022: 4.73% per annum).

RECEIVABLE FROM AGENTS
These comprise balances receivable from agents on account of the sale of insurance policies by the agent on behalf of the

Company.

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2023 2022 2022
{Restated)
SAR000
Receivable from brokers / agents 67,490 44,475 48,803
Less: expected credit loss allowance (26,956) (25,211) (12,027)
40,534 19,264 36,776
Closing balance A 40,534 19,264 36,776
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

12. INVESTMENTS
Maximum exposure to credit risk — financial instruments subject to ECL
The Company’s exposures to credit risk are not collateralized. The following tables contains an analysis of the
credit risk exposure of the financial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross carrying
amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost below also represents the Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk on these assets.
Insurance operations
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
{Restated)
SAR’000
Investment measured at FVOCI 43,484 39,703 37,032
43.484 39,703 37,032
Shareholders’ operations
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
{Restated)
SAR’000
Investment measured at FVOCI 1,423 104,320 13,259
Investment measurcd at amortized cost 17,555 12,525 44,198
18,978 116,845 57,457
Total 62,462 156,548 94,489
12(a). The movement in investments measured at FYOCI is as follows:
December 31, December 31, January 1,
Insurance Operations 2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR’000
Opening balance 39,703 37,032 1,923
Changes in fair value of investments measured at FVOCI 3,781 2671 35,109
Closing balance 43,484 39,703 37,032
December 31, December 31, January 1,
Shareholders’ Operations 2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR’000
Opening balance 104,320 13,259 10,949
Purchases - 102,163 2,788
Changes in fair value of investments measured at FVOCI
1,752 1,374 1,564
Cumulative gain on disposal of investments measure at
FVOCI (2,656) (2,928) (455)
Disposals at cost (101,993) (9,548) (1,587}
Closing balance 1,423 104,320 13,259
Total 44,907 144,023 50,291
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

12.

12(b).

12(c).

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The investment measured at FVOCI includes investment in Najm, REITs & IPOs that has been valued as
follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

2023 2022 2022
{Restated)
SAR’000

Cost of investment 3,210 105,203 12,588
Fair Value Reserve

At the beginning of the year 38,820 37,703 35,109
Changes in fair value 2,877 1,117 2,594
Fair value reserve- closing balance 41,697 38,820 37,703
Total Investment at Fair Value 44,907 144,023 50,291

The fair value of Najm is based on the independent valuation report dated 31 December 2023. The independent
valuer has been appointed by the Najm.

The movement in investments measured at amortised costs is as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,
Shareholders’ Operations 2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR000

Opening balance 12,530 44,198 49,045
Purchases 4,997 - -
Disposals/matured - (31,795) (5,250)

17,527 12,403 43,795
Add: Accrued Commission Income 54 127 403
Less: Impairment loss (26) (5) -
Net closing balance 17,555 12,525 44,198

The breakdown of investments measured at amortised costs is as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,
Shareholders’ Operations 2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR’000
Sukuk 17,555 12,525 44,198
Murabaha deposits 76,264 - 10,000
93,819 12,525 54,198

The term deposits having original maturity exceeding three months have been placed with reputable commercial
banks and financial institutions locally. They are mostly denominated in Saudi Arabian Riyals. These deposits
earn yield at rates 6.01% per annum. Term deposits are placed with counterparties that have credit ratings
equivalent to AAA+ to BBB ratings under standard and Poor’s Fitch and Moody’s rating Methodology.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

14.

Insurance Operations

Accrual against stale cheques
Accrued employees' benefits
Unallocated receipts

Provision for withholding tax
Medical service providers' payables
Others

Shareholders® Operations

Accrued Board of Directors (BoD) allowances
Others

Total

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Insurance Operations

Accrued hajj and umrah income
Prepaid medical insurance premiums
Employees’ receivables

Prepaid rent

Accrued interests

Others

Shareholders’ Operations

Accrued interests
Others

Total

60

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
{Restated)
SAR' 000
3,095 3,095 7,461
2.459 1,346 2,231
2,303 16,021 6,067
1,950 1,976 -
547 - 10,930
6,746 7,079 2,445
17,100 29,517 29,134
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR' 000
1,809 1,837 1,112
1,766 588 1,879
3,575 2,425 2,991
20,675 3%42 32,125
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR' 000
13,773 6,299 -
1,539 1,328 1,770
897 606 1,701
323 201 254
26 3 3
13,480 22,481 7,469
30,038 30,918 11,197
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
(Restated)
SAR' 000
1,221 430 361
29 365 24
1,250 795 385
31,288 31,713 11,582
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

16.

17.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company’s commitments and contingencies are as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2023 2022 2022
{Audited & Restated)
SAR000
Capital and other commitments 307 728 122
307 728 122

The Company, in common with significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The Company’s
management, based on independent legal advice, believes that the outcome of court cases will not have a material impact on the Company’s income or
financial condition,

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction takes place either:

- in the accessible principal market for the asset or liability, or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantages accessible mariet for the asset or liability

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, premium and reinsurance receivables, receivables from related parties, trade and other
payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for the same or identical instrument that an entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are based on
observable market data; and

Level 3: valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

a) Carrying amounts and fair value
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value

hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value, It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not
measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation to fair value.

Insurance operations December 31, 2023
Carrying value Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
SAR' K00
Investments designated as FVOCI
Shares 43,484 - - 43,484 43,484
43,484 - - 43,484 43,484
31 December 2022 (Restated)
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SAR' 000
Investments designated as FVOCI
Shares 39,703 - - 39,703 39,703
36,703 - - 39,703 39.703

1 Januany 2022 (Restated)

Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SAR' 000
Investments designated as FVOCI
Shares 37,032 - - 37,032 37,032
37,032 - - 37,032 37,032
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

17. FAIR YALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Shareholders' operations
December 31, 2023

Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SAR' 000
Investments designated as FVOCI
Shares and REIT 1,423 1,423 - - 1,423
1,423 1,423 - - 1423
31 December 2022 (Restated)
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SAR' 000
Investments designated as FVYOCI
Shares and REIT 1,616 1,616 - - 1,616
Murabaha Funds 102,704 - 102,704 - 102,704
104,320 1616 102,704 - 104,320
1 January 2022 (Restated)
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SAR' 000
Investments designated as FVOCI
Shares and REIT 13,259 13,259 - - 13,259
13,259 13,259 - - 13,259

The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities, not included in the table above, are not materially different from the carrying values included in
the financial statements.

b) Measurement of fair value

Financial assets at FVOCI at 31 December 2023 include 689,655 shares (31 December 2022 and 2021: 689,655 shares) in Najm for Insurance
Services (“Najm™). The investment is carried at fair value of SR 43.48 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022 at SR 39.70 million and
31 December 2021 at SR 37.03 million) computed using “Discounted Cash Flow Method”. Major assumptions related to revenue growth, cost of
sales, interest income, general and admin expenses and depreciation were assessed for reasonableness based on recent projections.

The assumptions used involve a considerable degree of estimation on the part of expert. Actual conditions may differ from assumptions and thus
actual cash flows may be different to those expected with a potential material effect on the recoverability of amounts. The most significant
assumptions used in the determination of expected discounted cash flows for the next 5 years are:

» Weighted average cost of capital of 16.5% (2022: 16.0%) and

» Long-term growth rate of 2% (2022: 2%).

Although management believes that the assumptions used to evaluate potential impairment ar¢ reasonsble, with a significant portion based on the
actual performance achieved in the past, such assumptions are inherently subjective.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed and an increase of 0.5% of the weighted average cost of capital and a decrease of 0.5% of the iong-term
growth have no material impact on the valuation.
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMFANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Related parties represent major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Company, and companies of which they are
principal owners and any other entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by them. Pricing policies and terms of
these transactions are approved by the Company’s management and Board of Directors. The following are the details of the major related
party transactions during the year and the related balances:

Balance receivable / (pavable) as ai

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES Transactions for the year ended

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
SAR' 000 SAR' 000 SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by related parties
El Seif companies group
- Premium issued 1,037 602 989 1,433
- Claims incurred 2 - - -
1,039 602 989 1,433
Globe-Med
- Volume rebate 2,728 - - 6,000
2,728 - - 6,000
Total 3,767 602 989 7,433
Less: expected credit loss {623) {880)
Due from related parties, net 366 6,553
The movement in the provision for doubtful receivables regarding related parties was as following:
December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Opening balance 880 733
Charge / (reversal) during the year (257) 147
Closing balance 623 880
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
Amounts of transactions Balances as at
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 2023 2022
SAR' 000 SAR' 000 SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Board of Directors & related committee
Bonus and other allowances 1,486 1,119 1,809 1,518
Globe-Med (Group entity)
Administration fees for handling medical claims and
others 6,165 5,020 1,589 5,677
7,651 6,139 3,398 7,195

Key management personnel are persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Company, directly or indirectly and comprise top management executives including the Chief Executive Officer, and the Chief Operating

Officer of the Company.
The compensation of key management personnel during the year is as follows:

Salaries and other allowances
End of service indemnities
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December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
2,233 1,416
945 621
3,178 2,037




AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31, 2023

20. PROVISION FOR ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

The Company has filed Zakat and income tax returns with Zakat, Tax, and Customs Authority up to the year ended Decemnber 31, 2022 and obtained
the required certificate that is valid up to April 30, 2024,

Status of assessments

All the assessments up to the year 2016 have been settled with ZATCA and a final clearance certificate has been obtained. During the year ended 31
December 2020, ZATCA issued zakat assessment for the years 2017 and 2018 amounting to 6.2 million. The Company has filed objection against the
assessment and the management believes that the liability can be reduced to 3.7 million with a high probability. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Company has also received assessments along with penalties in respect of Value Added Tax ("VAT") for the years 2018 and 2019
amounting to 1.6 million. The Company objected to the penalties which have been reversed by ZATCA and are under process for refund.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, ZATCA issued zakat assessments for the years 2019 and 2020 amounted 4.997 miilion (3.069 million and
1.92% million), the company objected against the assessments and paid 10% of the objected amounts (0.3 million and 0.2 million) as an objection
requirement. The case is still under discussion with ZATCA.

Provision for zakat and income tax
Provision for zakat has been made at 2.5776% of the higher of approximate zakat base or adjusted net income and 2.5% on adjusted net income

attributable to the Saudi shareholders of the Company.

Income tax is payable at 20% of the adjusted net income attributable to the foreign shareholders of the Company.

ZAKAT
2022
The current year’s zakat provision is based on the following: 2023 {Restated)
SAR' 000

Share capital 430,000 280,000
Reserves, opening provisions and other adjustments (48,774) (41,565)
Beok value of long term assets (214,663) {157,227)

166,563 81,208
Adjusted income for the year (Zakat) 45,952 (36,219)
Adjusted income for the year (Tax) 379 -
Zakat base 212,515 44,989
Tax base 379 -
Saudi Sharcholder’s share of Zakat base @ 98.99% 210,347 44,530
Total zakat and income tax 5,462 1,176

The differences between the financial and zakatable results are mainly due to provisions, which are not allowed in the calculation of adjusted income.
The movement in the zakat provision for the year was as follows:

2022
2023 (Restated)
SAR' 000
Opening balance 7,009 3.559
Charge for the year 5462 1,176
Paid during the year 1) -
(Reversal} / charge for prior year {182) 2,274
Closing balance 11,789 7.009
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

21. EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

22

The Company operates an end of service benefit plan for its employees based on the prevailing Saudi Labor Laws. Accruals are made in accordance
with the actuarial valuation under projected unit credit method while the benefit payments obligation is discharged as and when it falls due. The
amounts recognized in the statement of financial position and movement in the obligation during the year based on its present value are as follows:

2023 2022
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,181 5,022
Movement of defined benefit obligation I
Opening balance 5,022 5,342
Charge to statement of income
Current service cost 1,279 1,642
Interest cost 203 75
1,482 1,717
Charge to statement of comprehensive income
Actuanal loss / (gain) on employees' end-of-service benefits (517) 1,499
Payment of benefits during the year (806) {3,536)
Closing balance 5,181 5,022
Principal actuarial assmmptions 2023 2022
Valuation discount rate 4.55% 4.40%
Expectad rate of increase in salary level across different age bands 4.40% 2.05%
The impact of changes in sensitivities on present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
2023 2022
Valuation discount rate
- Increase by 1% 4,889 4,590
- Decrease by 1% 5,505 5,530
Expected rate of increase in salary level across different age bands
- Increase by 1% 5,524 5,547
- Decrease by 1% 4,867 4,568
Mortality rate
- 1 year mortality rate set back 5,182 5,024
- 1 year mortality rate set forward 5,179 5,019
Employee turnover
- Increase by 10% 5,072 4,905
5,302 5,151

- Decrease by 10%

STATUTORY DEPOSIT

In accordance with the Law on Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company is required to
maintain a statutery deposit at 10%. Further, Insurance Authority (IA) has increased the statutory deposit by 5%. This statutory depesit cannot be
withdrawn without the consent of Insurance Authority. During the year ended 2022, the company increased its paid capital to SR 430 million by right
issue shares. After the aforementioned amendments to the capital, the company increased the amount of deposit to SR 64.5 million to be fully
compliant with regulatory requirements. The statutory deposit is currently maintained at 15% of the new paid-up capital, SR 430 million, amounting
to SR 64.5 million.

The statutory deposit is placed with a counterparty having investment grade credit rating. Accrued commission income on statutery depesit is shown
as an asset and liability in the statement of financial position.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 January 1, 2022
{Restated)
SAR' 080
Statutory deposit 64,500 64,500 19,500
Less: expected credit loss allowance - - -
64,500 64,500 19,500
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

23. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Objectives are set by the Company to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximize shareholders” value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis. Adjusiments to
current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders ot issue shares.

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concem and comply with the regulators’ capital requirements of the
markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the retum to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising paid share capital, reserves and retained eamings.

As per guidelines laid out by Insurance Authority (IA) previously known as SAMA in Article 66 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations detailing
the solvency margin required to be maintained, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the following three methods
as per Insurance Implementing Regulations:

- Minimum Capital Requirement of SAR 100 million

- Premium Solvency Margin

- Claims Solvency Margin

The Company’s net admissible assets as of December 31, 2023 are 210% (Restated 2022: 105.66%) of the required minimum margin for solvency.
Further, the Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements with sound selvency margin. The capital structute of the
Company as of December 31, 2023 consists of paid-up share capital of SAR 430 million and accumulated losses of SAR 189.2 million (December 31,
2022 paid-up share capital of SAR 430 million and accumulated losses of SAR 214.6 million.} in the statement of financial position.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company has fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported
financial year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2023, the authorized, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company was SR 430 million, divided into 43 million shares of
SR 10 each. {December 31, 2022: SR 430 million share capital dividend into 43 million shares of SR 10 cach).

On January 17, 2022, the Board of Directors had recommended an increased in the Company’s capital through right issue with a total value of SR 300
million. The extra ordinary general meeting of shareholders was held on February 28, 2022, to approve the aforementioned capital increase and
procedures for the issuance of right shares. On April 24, 2022, the Company obtained approval from insurnace authority previously known as SAMA.
On May 23, 2022 the Capital Market authority (CMA) approved the said capital increase.

Following the Shareholders’ approval on May 29, 2022, the Company anneunced trading of 30 million right shares during the subscription year of the
priority rights starting from June 06, 2022, to June 16, 2022. The remaining offering year for the subscription of new shares was set from June 21,
2022, to June 22, 2022. On June 30, 2022 subscribed securities were deposited into the Center’s Accounts of eligible securities” holders.

December 31, 2023 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Authorized and Paid up Authorized and Paid up
issued issued
No. of Shares SAR “000" No. of Shares SAR “000”
Major shareholders 4,376 43,761 4376 43 761
Others 38,624 386,239 38,624 386,239
Total 43,000 430,000 43,000 430,000
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

25. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management covers mainly the followings::

- Insurance Risks

- Financial Risks

1-Insurance Risks

For non-life insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters and manmade accidents. For longer tail claims
that take some years to settle, there is also inflation risk.

For life insurance contracts, the main risks are, as follows:

« Mortality risk — risk of loss arising due to the incidence of policyholder death being different than expected

« Morbidity risk — risk of loss arising due to policyhelder health experience being different than expected

» Expense risk — risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected

» Policyholder decision risk — risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different than expected

The objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover the liabilities associated with these insurance and reinsurance
contracts that it issues. The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across the portfolios of insurance contracts. The variability of risks is also
improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Furthermore,
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of
possible fraudulent claims are established to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly settling claims, to 1educe its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business. Inflation risk is
mitigated by taking expected inflation into account when estimating insurance contract liabilities and pricing appropriately.

Reinsurance Risks

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risk mitigation program. Reinsurance held (outward reinsurance) is placed on both a proportional
and non—proportional basis. The majerity of proportional reinsurance is quota—share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of
the Company to certain classes of business. Retention limits for non-proportional excess-of-loss reinsurance vary by product line.

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and
monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.

Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors, CEO and reinsurnace department. The
criteria may be summarized as follows:

- Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent

- Reputation of particular reinsurance companies

- Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance of the reinsurers, wherever applicable, are
thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements of the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee before
approving them for exchange of reinsurance business. As of December 31, 2023, December 31, 2022 and January 1, 2022, there is no significant
concentration of reinsurance balances.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company remains liable for the
portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.

The nature of the Company’s exposure to insurance risks and its objectives, policies and processes used to manage and measure the risks have not
changed from the previous period.

The following tables show the concentration of net insurance contract liabilities by type of contract:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Insurance Reinsurance Insurance
coniracts contracts contracts Reinsurance
issued held Net issued contracts held Net
SAR' 000 SAR’ 000

Medical 94,387 (1,264) 93,123 72,714 {4,040) 68,674
Motor 24,846 (2,722) 22,124 57,188 (3,380) 53,808
Property & Casualty 3,425 {995} 2430 4451 (712) 3,739
Total 122 658 {4,981) 117,677 134.353 (8.132) 126,221
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25. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
1. Insurance Risks (Continued)

Sensitivities on major assumptions considered while applying IFRS 17

The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit / loss before tax and equity for reasonably possible movements
in key assumptions with all other assumptions in notes 2 and 3 held constant. The correlation of assumnptions will have a significant effect in
determining the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual
basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear.

The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the previous year.

Board of directors
The risk governance is the centralized oversight of the Board of Directors providing direction and the necessary approvals of strategies and policies in
order to achieve defined corporate goals.

Following are the sensitivities derived for the portfolios computed under PAA approach before and after risk mitigation by reinsurance contracts held:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Insurance Lmpact on Insurance -
profit/(loss)  Impacton profit/(loss) Impact on
contract A contract .
—_—— before zakat equity o before zakat equity
liabilities liabilities
and tax and tax
Ingurance eontract liabilities SAR' 000
Expenses increase by 5% 90,638 29,370 278,691 119,304 (46,663) 246,349
Expenses decrease by 5% 87,749 38,146 287,467 112,336 (36,946) 256,066
Yields curve shift up by 0.5 % 89,104 33,926 283,247 115,722 {41,903) 251,109
Yields curve shift down by 0.5 % 89,273 33,590 282911 115,918 {41,707 251,305
L.oss reserve inerease by 5 % 94,444 28,507 277,828 120,071 {46,055) 246,957
Loss reserve decrease by 5 % 53,934 39,017 288,338 111,570 {37,554) 255458
Following are the sensitivities derived for the portfolios computed under PAA approach afier risk mitigation by reinsurance contracts held
December 31, 2023 December 31,2022
Net Impact on Net insurance Impact on
insurance  profit/(loss)  Impacton cantract profit/(loss) Impact on
contract  before zakat equity liabilities before zakat equity
liabilities and tax and tax
SAR' 000
Insurance coniract liabilities 122,658 134,353
Reinsurance contract Assets 4,981 8,132
Net insurance contract liabilities 117,677 126,221
Expenses increase by 5% 89,184 29,370 278,691 116,736 {46,663) 246,349
Expenses decrease by 5% 86,295 38,146 287,467 109,769 {36,946) 256,066
Yields curve shift up by 0.5 % 87,651 33,926 283,247 113,154 {41,903) 251,109
Yields curve shift down by 0.5 % 87,819 33,590 252,911 113,350 {41,707) 251,305
Loss reserve increase by 5 % - 92,990 28,507 277,828 117,503 {46,055) 246,957
Loss reserve decrease by 5 % 82,480 39,017 288,338 109,002 {37.554) 255,458

2. Financial risk

Financia! risk comprises of the followings:

- Liguidity Risk

- Market Risk

- Credit Risk

These risks have been briefly explained below:

a. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are seitled by

delivering cash or ancther financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events, there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between
gross cash ouiflows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company's exposure to liquidity risk:
- The Company’s liquidity risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity risk for the Company. Compliance with
the pelicy 15 monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and

for changes in the risk environment.
- The Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseeable interruption

of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.
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25. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)}
1. Insurance Risks (Continued)

CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT TABLE

The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR for each successive accident year at
each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date. As required by IFRS 17, in setting claims provisions, the Company gives
congideration to the probability and magnitude of future experience being more adverse than assumed which is reflected in the risk adjustment.

It general, the uncertainty associated with the ultimate cost of settling claims is greatest when the claim is at an early stage of development. As claims
develop, the ultimate cost of claims becomes more certain.

The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future claims experience and
developments, Claims triangular analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.

A) Gross Claims development 2018 &

earlier 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
2023 SAR' 000
Accident year

Undiscounted liabilities for ineurred
claims, gross of reinsurance:

At end of accident year 129353 172,023 191746 247199 178,985 92,404 92,404
1 year later 125747 198241 248662 290960 200355 . 200,355
2 years later 123561 198362 249084 293,959 : 2 293959
3 years later 121200 198496 249,009 ; ; . 249009
4 years later 120672 198378 ; - . ) 198,378
5 years later 120,300 . i ] ; E 120,390
6 years later 120,384 - - : - : 120,384
Gross estimates of the undiscounted .00, g3z 249009 293050 200355 92,404 1,154,489

amount of the claims

Cumulative gross claims and other
directly attributable expenses paid
Gross undisconnted liabilities for

(120,330) (198,372) (248,781} (292,372) (195,339) (77,499)  (1,132,743)

incurred claims i1 6 228 1,587 5,016 14,905 21,746
Effect of discounting (1,775) (1,961) 1,681 (2.055)

Gross discounted liabilities for incurred
claims excluding risk adjustment

23,801

Effect of the risk adjustment margin for
non-financial risk -
Gross liabilities for incurred claims 23,801
B) Net Claims development 2018 &

earlier 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
2023 SAR' 000
Accident year
Undiscounted liabilities for incurred
claims , net of reinsurance
At end of accident year 63,049 150,481 191,737 239,046 178,985 92,404 92,404
1 year later 62,535 174,231 248,654 282,807 199,919 199,919
2 years later 60,619 174,334 249075 285,821 - . 285,821
3 years later 59,615 174,468 249,000 - - - 249,000
4 years later 59,315 174,351 - - - - 174,351
5 years later 59,143 - - - - - 59,143
6 years later 59,136 - - - - - 59,136
Net ecstimates of the wndiscounted 59.136 174351 249,000 285821 199,919 92,404 1,060,631

amount of the claims

Cumulative mnet claims and other
direetly attributable expenses paid

Net undiscounted liabilities for incurred

(59,132)  (174,346)  (248,772)  (284,521)  (195319)  (77.499)  (1,039,589)

elaims 4 5 228 1,300 4,600 14,905 21,042
Effect of discounting (1,775) (1,961) 1,681 (2,055)
Net discounted liabilities for incurred

claims excluding risk adjustment 23,097

Effect of the risk adjustment margin for
non-financial risk -
Net liabilities for incurred claims 23,097
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25, RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
I. Insurance Risks (Continued)

A) Gross Claims development 2017 &

earlier 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
2022 SAR' 000
Accident year

Undiscounted lishilities for incurred
claims, gross of reinsurance:

At end of accident year 79,549 80,907 198,298 247,147 304,043 222,550

1 year later 64,855 78,237 200,231 249,921 293,432 = -
2 years later 60,052 77,721 198,481 249207 - . .
3 vears later 58,215 77,388 198,529 - - -
4 years later 57486 77259 - - - - .
5 years later 57240 - - - - - -
6 years later 42,827 - - - - -

Gross estimates of the undiscounted
amount of the claims

Cumulative gross claims and other
directly attributable expenses paid
Gross undiscounted liabilities for

42,827 77,259 198,529 249207 293,432 222,550 1,083,804

(42,811) (77.150) (198,491) (247,774} (287.307) (155,707  (1,013,240)

ineurred claims 16 109 38 1,433 6,125 62,843 70,564
Effect of discounting (1,775) (1,951) (3,736)

Gross discounted liabilities for incurred
claims excluding risk adjustment

66,828

Effect of the risk adjustment margin for
non-financial risk -
Gross ligbilities for incurred <laims 66,828
B) Net Claims development 2017 &

earlier 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total
2022 SAR' 000
Accident year
Undiscounted liabilities for ineurred
claims , net of reinsurance
At end of accident year 39,580 43983 163,694 235,437 294,014 221,820 221,820
1 vear later 32,060 43,587 175,872 249912 285,280 - 285,280
2 years later 30,332 43,138 174,415 249,198 - s 249,198
3 years later 29572 42955 174,496 - B - 174,496
4 vears later 29,314 42 841 - - - - 42,841
5 years later 29226 - - - - - 29,226
6 vears later 15,873 - - - - - 15,873
Net lmales S = Maacasnted 15,873 42341 17449 249,198 285280 221820 989,508

amount of the claims

Cumulative net claims and other
directly attributable expenses paid

Net undiscounted liabilities for incurred

(15,873) (42,740} {174,464) {247,765) (280,826) (159,707} (921,375)

claims (0} 101 32 1,433 4,454 62,113 68,133
Effect of discounting (1,775) {1,961) (3,736)

Net discounted liabilities for incurred
claims excluding risk adjustment

64,397
Effect of the risk adjustiment margin for
non-financial risk -
Net liabilities for incurred claims 64,397
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i. Maturity prefiles

25. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED}
2. Financial rigsk (Continued)

Maturity analysis for insurance and reinsurance contract liabilities (present value of future cash flows basis)
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of groups of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held that are liabilities of the
Company based on the estimates of the present value of the future cash flows expected to be paid out in the periods presented.

Insurance contract Liabilities

Medical
Motor
Property & Casualty

Reinsurance contract liabilities

Medical

Motor

Property & Casualty
Total

Insurance contract Liabilities

Medical
Motor
Property & Casualty

Reinsorance contract liabilities

Medical

Motor

Property & Casualty
Total

2023
Upto 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 vears 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
SAR' 000
74,919 2,073 - - - - 76,992
7,624 2,495 719 153 3 - 10,994
1,357 - - - - - 1,357
931 26 - - - - 957
1,006 329 95 20 - - 1,450
(799) - - - - - (799)
85,038 4923 814 173 3 - 87,735
2022
Uptol Year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
SAR' 000
59,746 964 - - - - 60,710
35,606 11,654 3,358 716 12 - 51,346
2,772 547 15 - - - 3334
(2,116) - = = - - {2,116)
96,008 13,165 3.373 716 12 - 117,506

Maturity analysis for financial assets (contractual undiscounted cash flow basis)
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of financial assets of the Company based on the remaining undiscounted contractual cash flows,

including interest receivable:

Insurance Operations - Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments designated as FVOCI
Prepayments and other receivables
Due from shareholders’ operations

Sharcholders® Operations - Financial

assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short term deposit

Investment measured at FVOCI
Investment measured at amortized cost
Prepayments and other assets

Statutory deposit

Accrued income on statutory deposit

Total

2023
Uptol Year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
SAR' 000
37,572 - - - - 37,572
43,484 - - - 43,484
30,038 - - - - - 30,038
37,699 - - - - - 37,699
148,793 - - - - - 148,793
135,687 - - 135,687
76,216 - - - - 76,216
1,423 - - 1,423
- - - 17,555 - 17,555
1,250 - - 1,250
64,500 - - - - - 64,500
2,931 - - - - - 2,931
282,007 - - 17,555 - - 232,131
430,800 - - 17,555 - - 380,924
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25. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
2. Financial risk (Continued)

2022 - Restated
Uptol Yem 1-2 vears 2-3 vears 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total
SAR' 000

Insurance Operations - Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 56,161 - . - - 56,161
Investment measured at FYOCI 39,703 - - - - - 39,703
Prepayments and other assets 30,918 - 30,918
Due from shareholders’ operations 53,924 - - - - - 53,924

180,706 - - - - - 180,706
Sharehalders’ Operations - Finaneial
assets
Cash and cash equivalents 97,595 - - - - - 97,595
Investment measured at FYOCI 104,320 - . - - - 104,320
Investment measured at amortized cost - s - - 12,525 - 12,525
Prepayments and other assets 795 - - - - - 795
Statutory deposit 64,500 - - - - - 64,500
Accrued income on statutory deposit 3,787 - - - - - 3,787

270,997 - - - 12525 - 215,235
Total 451703 - - - 12,525 - 395,941
b. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument, insurance contract issued, or reinsurance contract held will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:

- Currency risk;

- Price nisk; and

- Commission rate risk.

i. Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument, insurance contract assets and/or liabilities will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in Saudi Arabian Rivals (SAR) and its exposure to
foreign exchange risk arises primarily with respect to the US dollar. The Company’s financial assets are primarily denominated in the SAR.

Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuation as the majority of monetary assets and liabilities
are in currencies linked to the SAR. In addition, Company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US dollars which is pegged with SAR and
therefore the financial instruments are not sensitive to currency fluctuations.

The Company mitigates some of the foreign currency risk associated with insurance contracts by holding reinsurance contracts denominated in the
same currencies as its insurance contract liabilities.

2023 | 2022 (Restated) |
Saudi Riyals US Dollars Total Saudi Rivals 1j§ Dollars Total
SAR' 000
Insurance Operations - Financial assels
Cash and cash equivalents 37,572 - 37,572 56,161 - 56,161
Insurance conttact assets 30,420 - 30,420 18,533 - 18,533
Reinsurance contract assets 3,526 - 3,526 5557 - 5,557
Investment measured at FVOCI 43,484 . 43,484 39,703 - 39,703
Prepayments and other assets 30,038 - 30,038 30,918 - 30,918
Due from shareholders' operations 37,699 - 37,699 53,924 - 53,924
182,739 - 182,739 204,756 - 204,796
Shareholders’ Operations - Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 135,687 - 135,687 97,595 - 97.595
Short term deposit 76,216 - 76,216 - - -
Investment measured at FVQCI 1,423 - 1,423 104,320 - 104,320
Investment measured at amortized cost - 17,555 17,555 - 12,525 12,525
Accrued income on statutory deposit 2,931 - 2,931 3,787 - 3,787
Prepayments and other assets 1,250 - 1,250 793 - 795
217,507 17,555 235,062 206,497 12,525 219,022
Total 400,246 17,555 417,801 411,293 12,525 423 818
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25. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
2. Financial risk (Continued)
b. Market Risk (confinued)

I 2023 [ 2022 (Restated)
Saudi Riyals US Dollars Total Saudi Rivals US Dollars Total
SAR' 000
Insurance Operations - Financial Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 122,658 - 122,658 134,353 - 134,353
Reinsurance contract liabilities 4,981 - 4,981 8132 “ 8.132
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 17,100 - 17,100 29,517 - 25,517
Employees' end-of-service benefits (EOSB) 5,181 - 5,181 5022 - 5,022
149,920 - 149,920 177,024 - 177,024
Shareholders’ Operations - Financial Ligbilities
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,575 - 3,575 2,425 2,425
Due to insurance operation 37,699 - 37,699 53,924 53,924
Accrued income payable to Insurance Authority 2,931 - 2,931 3,787 - 3,787
Provision for zakat and income tax liabilities 11,789 - 11,789 7.009 - 7,009
55,994 - 55,994 67,145 - 67,145
Total 205,914 - 205,914 244,169 - 244,169

§. Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments or insurance contract assets and/or liabilities will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate or foreign exchange rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or contract, or by factors affecting all similar contracts or financial instruments traded in the market.

ifi. Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in commission rates will affect future profitability or the fair values of financial
instruments. The Company has no significant concentration of commission rate risk.

¢ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. For
all classes of financial instruments held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the
statement of financial position.

Credit risk measurement

IFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in “Stage 1’ and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the
Company.

If a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved fo *Stage 2° but is not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to “Stage 3°.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS ¢ is that it should consider forward looking information.

The key judgements and assumptions adopied by the Company in addressing the requirements of IFRS 9 are discussed below:

Significant increase in credif risk
The Company considers a financial instrument to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk when one or more of the following quantitative
and qualitative criteria have been met.

Quantitative criteria:
- Dovnward movement in the external credit rating by two notches;
- Downward movement in the external credit rating by one notch if the revised external credit rating becomes below “investment grade™;
- Contractual payments are more than 30 days past due ;

Qunlitative criteria:

- An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the counterparty that results in a
significant decrease in the counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations to the Company;

- A group company of the counterparty has defauited and in the Company’s opinion repayment capacity of the counterparty would also be significantly
impacted.
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25.

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
2. Financial risk {Continued)
¢. Credit Risk {continued)

Definition of default and credit-impaired assets
The Company defines a financial instruments as in default, which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it meets one or more of
the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria:
Contractual payments are more than 90 days past due;
Counterparty’s refusal to pay the amounts due.

Qualitative criteria:

- Information about the bankruptcy of the counterparty;

Legal case on recovery proceedings;

The criteria above have been applied to all financial assets. An instrument is considered to no longer be in default (i.e. to have cured) when it no
longer mects any of the default criteria for a consecutive period of twelve month. This period has been determined based on an analysis which
considers the likelihood of a financial instrument returning to default status after cure using different possible cure definitions.

The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly
since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Company
formulates a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of other possible forecast
scenarios. This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.
External information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the KSA and selected
private-sector and academic forecasters. The base case represents a most-likely outcome. The other scenarios represent mote optimistic and more
nessimistic outcomes.

The Company considers scenarios in range of 3-5 years horizon (consistent with forecast available from public sources) beyond which long term
average macroeconomic conditions prevail. Externally available macroeconomic forecast from Global Rating Agencies and the Insurance Authority
are used for making base case forecast. For other scenatios, adjustment are made to base case forecast based on expert judgement. The Company uses
multiple scenarios and probabilities are assigned to each scenario based on expert judgement.

Based on the detailed analysis of the Companies exposures to the credit risk, the management of the Company have opted to benefit from the practical
expedient in calculating the expected credit losses provided by IFRS 9 for financial assets with low credit risk. The management of the Company
measures impairment using 12-month expected credit losses for its financial assets subject to impairment. The low credit risk financial assets of the
Company meet the following requirements of IFRS 9 to measure impairment using 12-month expected credit losses:

Low credit risk of default;,

The counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their obligations in the near term;

Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the counterparties to fulfil
theil contractual cash flow obligations.

The Company uses external credit risk ratings of well-known and reputable rating agencies to assess the probability of default of individual
counterparties.

The Company does not recognise lifetime expected credit losses on a financial instrument simply because it was considered to have low credit risk in
the previous reporting period and is not considered to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In such a case, the Company will determine whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and thus whether lifetime expected credit losses are required to be
recognised.

Measuring expected credit losses

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the
Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default (LGD), defined as follows:

The PD represents the likelihood of e borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the next 12 months (12-month PD), or over the
remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12 months {12M EAD) or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure, LGD is expressed as a percentage loss
per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD). LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifefime basis, where 12-month 1.GD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs
over the remaining expected lifetime of the exposure.
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25. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
2. Financial risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit visk — financial instruments subject to ECL

The following tables contains an analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross
carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost below, also represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk on these assets.

2023 2022- Restated
Gross ECL Net Gross ECL Net
SAR “000™

Insurance Operations - Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 37,573 (1) 37,572 56,161 - 56,161
Receivable from agents 67,490 (26,956) 40,534 44,475 (25.211) 19,264
Investment measured at FVOCI 43,484 - 43,484 39,703 - 39,703
Prepayments and other assets 30,038 - 30,038 30,918 - 30,918
Due from shareholders' operations 37,699 - 37,699 53,924 - 53,924

216,284 (26,957) 185,327 225,181 (25,211) 199,970
Shareholders’ Operations - Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 135,711 (24) 135,687 97,595 (6) 97,589
Short term deposits 76,264 {48) 76,216 - - -
Investment measured at FVOCI 1,423 = 1,423 104,320 - 104,320
Investment measured at amortized cost - - - 12,525 (5) 12,520
Prepayments and other assets 1,250 - 1,250 795 - 795

214,648 (72) 214,576 215,235 {an 215,224
TOTAL 430,932 {27,029) 403,903 440416 (25,222) 415,194
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AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

26. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
26.3 Statement of cash flows

31 December 2023 31 December 2022 (Restated)
Insurance Sharcholders’ Insurance  Shareholders’
Operations  Operaticns Total Operations  Operations Total
SAR' 000 SAR' 000
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (loss} for the year before zakat - 30,71 30,719 - (44,733) (44,733)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization 1,811 1,811 1,936 - 1,936
Property and equipment writeoff during the year 117 117 - - -
Provision for end-of-service benefits 1,482 - 1,482 1,717 1,717
Investments held at amortised cost - (54) (54) - (127 (127)
ECL Provision - 63 63 - 5 5
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Insurance contracts assets (11,887) {11,387) (826) - (826)
Reinsurance contracts assets 2,031 - 2,031 15,038 - 15,038
Tnsurance contracts liabilities {11,695) = (11,695) (43,80%) - {43,305)
Reinsurance contracts liabilities (3,151) - (3151} 2,474 - 2474
Prepayments and other receivables 830 (455) 425 (19,721) (410) (20,131}
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (12,417} 1,150 (11,267) 383 (566} {183)
Zakat and income tax paid - (500) (500) - . -
Due to insurance operation - (16,225) (16,225) - (83.467) (83.467)
Due from shareholders' operations 16,225 - 16,225 83,467 - 83,467
Employees' end-of-service benefits paid (806) - {806) {3,536) - (3,536)
Net cash (used in) /generated from operating
activities (17,410) 14,698 (2,712) 37,127 (129,298) (92,171)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investment held at FVOCI - 104,649 104,649 12,476 12,476
Additions in saie of investment held at FYOCI - - - - (102,163) {102,163)
Proceeds from maturity of short-term deposit - - = 10,000 10,000
Addition in maturity of short-term deposit - (76,264} (76,264) - . £
Proceeds from held at amortised cost - - - - 31,795 31,795
Addition in held at amortised cost - 4,997y  (4,997) - - -
Additions in property, equipment and intangible assets {1,179 - (L,179) {2,334) - (2,334)
Change 1n statuary deposit - - - - (45,000) (45,000)
Transaction cost for Capital Increase - - - - (5,887) {5,387)
Net cash (used in) /generated from investing
activities (1,179) 23,388 22,209 (2,334) (98,779) (101,113)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of right shares - - - - 300,000 300,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from in financing
activities - - - - 300,000 300,000
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (18,589) 38,036 19,497 34,793 71,923 106,716
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the vear 56,161 97,601 153,762 21,368 25672 47,040
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 37,572 135,687 173,259 56,161 97.595 153,756




AMANA COOPERATIVE INSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

32,

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

DIVIDEND
No dividend was proposed or paid during the year.

EARNING/ (LOSS) PER SHARE (“EPS")
Basic and diluted eamnings / (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 have been calculated by dividing the net income for

the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and outstanding at the end of the period.

Eamings per share for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the equity
holders by 43,000 million shares to give a retroactive effect of change in the number of shares increased as a result of the bonus share issue.

TERMINATION OF MERGER
On 15-06-1445 AH (corresponding to 28-12-2023), the Company announced the termination of the non-binding memorandum of understanding

and all negotiations related to the merger process with Allied Cooperative Insurance Group {ACIG), based on the desire of both parties after
conducting the necessary studies. The termination will not have any material financial impact,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
There are no subsequent events to the year ended 31 December 2023,

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2024 (corresponding to 10th Ramadan 1445H).



